
Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.  The 
Council will webcast the meeting.

Please ask for:
Marie Lowe

10 July 2018

Dear Councillor

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE to be held on Thursday 19 July 2018 at 
7.30pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, 
Herts, AL8 6AE

Yours faithfully

Corporate Director
Public Protection, Planning and Governance

A G E N D A
PART 1

1.  SUBSTITUTIONS 

To note any substitution of Members made in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules 19-22.

2.  APOLOGIES 

3.  MINUTES 

To confirm as correct record the Minutes of the meetings held on 12 and 21 June 
2018 (previously circulated).

Public Document Pack



4.  NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 13 
AND ANY ITEMS WITHDRAWN FROM THE AGENDA 

5.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS 

To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on the Agenda.

6.  20 UPLAND DRIVE, BROOKMANS PARK, HATFIELD, AL9 6PT - 
6/2018/0655/FULL - ERECTION OF 2X5-BEDROOM DWELLINGS WITH 
PRIVATE REAR GARDENS AND FRONT DRIVEWAYS, FOLLOWING 
DEMOLITION OF EXISTING DWELLING (Pages 5 - 20)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance).

7.  11 ELM DRIVE, HATFIELD, AL10 8NR - 6/2018/1061/HOUSE - ERECTION OF 
FIRST FLOOR EXTENSION ABOVE EXISTING GROUND FLOOR EXTENSION 
(Pages 21 - 30)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance).

8.  MEADOW FARM, NORTHAW ROAD WEST, NORTHAW ROAD, POTTERS BAR, 
EN6 4QX - 6/2018/0679/VAR - VARIATION OF CONDITION 2 AND 3 ON 
PLANNING PERMISSION E6/1973/1887/, DATED 16/08/1973 (Pages 31 - 36)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance).

9.  APPEAL DECISIONS (Pages 37 - 42)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance).

10.  PLANNING UPDATE - FUTURE PLANNING APPLICATIONS (Pages 43 - 56)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance).

11.  DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT - APRIL - JUNE 
2018 (Pages 57 - 66)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance).

12.  SECTION 106 PLANNING OBLIGATIONS REPORT (Pages 67 - 92)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance).

13.  SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION 



14.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The Committee is asked to resolve:

That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for Item 15 on the grounds that it 
involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined in 
Section 100(A)(3) and Paragraphs 2 (Information likely to reveal the identity of an 
individual), and 6 (Statutory notice or order)  of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said 
Act (as amended).

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.

PART II

15.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN EXEMPT NATURE AT THE DISCRETION OF 
THE CHAIRMAN 

Circulation: Councillors N.Pace (Chairman)
J.Boulton (Vice-Chairman)
S.Boulton
H.Bromley
J.Caliskan
A.Chesterman
S.Elam

P.Hebden
M.Larkins
T.Lyons
S.Markiewicz
P.Shah
S.Wrenn

Corporate Management Team
Press and Public (except Part II Items)

If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Marie Lowe, 
Governance Service on 01707 357443 or email – democracy@welhat.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I
Executive Member: Councillor S Boulton

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE – 19 JULY 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPERATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE)
 
6/2018/0655/FULL

20 UPLAND DRIVE, BROOKMANS PARK, HATFIELD, AL9 6PT

ERECTION OF 2X5-BEDROOM DWELLINGS WITH PRIVATE REAR GARDENS 
AND FRONT DRIVEWAYS, FOLLOWING DEMOLITION OF EXISTING DWELLING

APPLICANT: Mr G Shiells  

AGENT: Mr P Cramphorn

(Brookmans Park & Little Heath)

1 Site Description

1.1 20 Upland Drive is a detached bungalow with front driveway/garden and rear 
garden set within a large plot.  

1.2 Upland Drive is a private access road featuring a linear row of residential 
properties running parallel to the Great North Road (A1000), which is 
separated by a landscaped screen.  The site is on the eastern edge of 
Brookmans Park, which is excluded from the Green Belt, as designated in the 
Local Plan.

1.3 Properties along Upland Drive are varied in style and include predominately 
detached two storey dwellings and a small number of detached bungalows 
typically set well back from the road in landscaped gardens.  Many properties 
have been extended and altered from their original form and there are some 
limited examples of replacement dwellings.  Recently, both 30 and 33 Upland 
Drive have been re-developed to accommodate two dwellings following 
demolition of the original dwellings and the subdivision of each plot (ref: 
6/2017/1422/FULL and 6/2015/2127/FULL respectively).  The development at 
30 is currently under construction whilst the two new dwellings at 33 have 
been completed.

2 The Proposal

2.1 Planning permission is sought for the erection of 2no. 5-bed dwellings 
following demolition of the existing dwelling.  This application is a 
resubmission following refused application: 6/2017/1617/FULL.

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



3 Reason for Committee Consideration

3.1 This application is presented to the Development Management Committee 
because Councillor Stephen Boulton has objected and called-in the 
application.

4 Relevant Planning History

4.1 Application number: 6/2017/1617/FULL
Proposal: Erection of 2 x 5-bedroom dwellings with private rear garden and 
front driveways, following demolition of existing dwelling.
Decision: Refused                                                       
Decision date: 12 January 2018

Reason for refusal:
‘The proposed dwellings, by virtue of their scale, massing, width, siting and 
design would appear cramped within their plot, failing to maintain sufficient 
spacing and respect the relationship with the neighbouring properties and 
would therefore appear unduly prominent and cramped within the site and the 
streetscene. As such they would fail to maintain or enhance the character and 
appearance of the site and the surrounding area. The proposal therefore 
represents a poor quality of design, contrary to Policies D1 and D2 of the 
Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005, the Supplementary Design Guidance 
2005 and the National Planning Policy Framework 2012.’

4.2 Application number: 6/2017/1015/PA
Proposal: Erection of two 5-bedroom dwellings with private rear garden and 
front driveways, following demolition of existing dwelling.
Advice date: 12 June 2017

Summary of advice:
Spacing of 1.5m between the 2 proposed dwellings too narrow.  Dwellings 
would appear cramped across their plot width and the spacing and fail to 
maintain the spacing between dwellings along Upland Drive 
Projection of one proposed dwelling some 6.6m beyond front façade of the 
other proposed dwelling would be overly dominant and result in loss of light to 
the nearest ground and first floor windows.

4.3 Application number: S6/1989/0057/FP
Proposal: Bay window extension
Decision: Granted 
Decision date: 13 March 1989

5 Relevant Planning Policy

5.1 National Planning Policy Framework 2012 (NPPF)

5.2 Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005 (Local Plan)

5.3 Draft Local Plan Proposed Submission 2016 (Emerging Local Plan 2016)

Page 6



5.4 Supplementary Design Guidance 2005 (SDG)

5.5 Supplementary Planning Guidance, Parking Standards 2004 (SPG) 

5.6 Interim Policy for Car Parking Standards and Garage Sizes 2014 (Interim Car 
Parking Policy)

6 Site Designation 

6.1 The site lies within the specified settlement of Brookmans Park as designated 
with the Local Plan.

7 Representations Received 

7.1 The application has been advertised by neighbour notification letters. 

7.2 Numbers 19 and 23 Upland Drive have objected to this proposal.  Reasons 
for objection are summarised as follows:

 Granting planning permission will set a precedent of similar 
applications in future, giving rise to parking concerns, infrastructure 
problems and change to the existing character of the area  

 Development will overload the already inadequate drainage system 
 Potential damage to the road of Upland Drive 
 Road safety concerns 
 Potential insufficient daylight/sunlight, effect on outlook of No. 19
 Impact on adjoining owners during the construction process should be 

taken into consideration 
 A construction and traffic management plan should be a condition of 

any planning approval 
 SUDS required by condition of any planning approval
 Obscure glazed windows potentially unenforceable.  Windows which 

can cause overlooking issues to adjoining dwellings should not be 
allowed.

8 Consultations Received 

8.1 The statutory consultation responses received are summarised below, and 
where appropriate expanded upon in later sections of this report.

8.2 Councillor Stephen Boulton – Objection and call-in stated as follows:

‘As you know there have been several applications in this road and I am 
concerned that the character of the road is being changed by these proposals.  
The road had been originally developed with fairly large houses or bungalows 
on wide plots of land with good space between the dwellings.  The ongoing 
applications to build two houses on plots which contained one house will, if 
allowed to continue, affect the character of the road and amenity of existing 
residents.’

8.3 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (Client Services) – No objection.

Page 7



8.4 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (Public Health and Protection) – No 
objection.

8.5 Hertfordshire County Council Transport Programmes and Strategy 
(HCCTPS) – No objection.

8.6 Hertfordshire County Council (Ecology) – No objection.

8.7 Hertfordshire County Council (Fire & Rescue) – Provision of fire hydrants 
sought under S106. 

8.8 Thames Water – No objection.  Developer advice provided and informative 
recommended.

9 Parish Council Representations 

9.1 North Mymms Parish Council – Comments stated as follows:

“…In accordance with decision for 20 Upland Drive, we concur that this is a 
very similar proposal in scale, massing, width, siting and that the design would 
appear cramped within the site and street scene. These properties would be 
highly visible from the A1000.”

10 Analysis

10.1 The main planning issues to be considered are:

1. Principle of development (NPPF; Policies SD1, GBSP2, R1 and H2 of 
the Local Plan; Policies SP1, SP3 and SADM1 of the Emerging Local 
Plan)

2. Quality of design and impact on the character and appearance of the 
area (NPPF; Policies D1, D2, D8, GBSP2 and SDG of the Local Plan; 
Policy SP9 of the Emerging Local Plan)

3. Impact on the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers and future 
occupiers (NPPF; Policy D1 and SDG of the Local Plan; Policy SADM11 
of the Emerging Local Plan)

4. Highway and parking considerations (NPPF; Policies M14, SPG and 
Interim Car Parking Policy of the Local Plan; Policies SP4, SADM2 and 
SADM12 of the Emerging Local Plan)

5. Other considerations 
i) Refuse and recycling 
ii) Landscaping 
iii) Ecology 
iv) Removal of permitted development rights 
v) Other non-material neighbour representations 

1. Principle of development

10.2 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) encourages the provision of 
more housing and states that applications should be considered in the context 
of the presumption in favour of sustainable development.  Local planning 

Page 8



authorities should encourage the effective use of land by reusing land that has 
been previously developed provided that it is not of high environmental value.  
Policy GBSP2 directs new development into the existing towns and specified 
settlements within the district, providing that it will be limited to that which is 
compatible with the maintenance and enhancement of their character and the 
maintenance of their Green Belt boundaries.

10.3 The site has not been allocated in the Local Plan for additional housing supply 
and as such comes forward as a windfall residential site where Policy H2 of 
the Local Plan applies.  This policy states that all applications for windfall 
residential development will be assessed for potential and suitability against 
the following criteria:

i. the availability of previously-developed sites and/or buildings;
ii. the location and accessibility of the site to series and facilities by 

transport modes other than the car;
iii. the capacity of existing and potential infrastructure to absorb further 

development;
iv. the ability to build new communities to support infrastructure and 

provide demand for services and facilities; and
v. the physical and environment constraints on development of land.

10.4 Emerging Policy SADM1 is similar to Policy H2 but also includes criteria that a 
proposal would not result in disproportionate growth taking into account the 
position of a settlement within the settlement hierarchy and that the proposal 
would not undermine the delivery of allocated sites.

10.5 The application site is located within the large village of Brookmans Park as 
designated in the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005.  The site has previously 
been developed and currently contains a detached dwelling.  Infrastructure 
has been developed to provide transport links for existing residents and there 
are services available in the village centre.  The site is part of an existing 
residential area in a sustainable location and the development would not have 
an adverse impact upon the existing community.  Therefore, the site meets the 
first four criteria of the policy.  The fifth criteria relating to the physical and 
environmental constraints of the site is considered below in the following 
sections of this report.  Additionally given the number of properties proposed 
this is not considered to impact on the criteria of Policy SADM 1.

2. Quality of design and impact on the character and appearance of the 
area 

10.6 Local Plan Policies D1 and D2 respectively require high quality design in all 
new development and for proposals to respect and relate to the character and 
context of their location, maintaining and where possible enhancing the 
character of the existing area.  These policies are expanded upon in the 
Council’s SDG which requires the impact of a development to be assessed 
giving regard to the bulk, scale and design of the proposal and how it 
harmonises with the existing building and area.  Policy GBSP2 directs new 
development into the existing towns and specified settlements within the 
district, providing that it will be limited to that which is compatible with the 

Page 9



maintenance and enhancement of their character.  These policies are 
consistent with the design policies contained in the Emerging Local Plan and 
are broadly consistent with the NPPF, in particular, paragraph 17 which 
requires, amongst other things, that decision taking should always seek to 
secure high quality design.

10.7 The application site comprises a large detached bungalow measuring 17.8m 
wide and 14.4m deep with a maximum height of approximately 5.2m.  The 
property is situated on a generous sized plot which measures approximately 
19.6m wide by 56.8m deep.  The existing dwelling is set back approximately 
19.3m from the front boundary, is on a consistent building line to its 
neighbouring property at number 21 and set back from number 19.

10.8 Both proposed dwellings are very similar to each other in terms size, design 
and appearance.  Each dwelling would feature a pitched roof hipped on all 
sides, including two storey front and rear set-down elements and a single 
storey flat roof rear element.  The only dissimilarities include one dwelling 
being slightly narrower than the other (approximately 0.3m) and containing a 
single flat roof dormer on its side roof slope, facing north-west.

10.9 The proposed dwellings would be set down approximately 0.7m into the 
ground to match the height of its neighbouring properties at numbers 19 and 
21.  Additionally, the siting of each dwelling would respect the established 
building line and the built development would not appear excessive relative to 
the large footprint of this plot.

10.10 With regard to spacing, the Supplementary Design Guidance (SDG) states 
that “for all multi-story, two storey and first floor extensions, a minimum 
distance of 1m between the extension and the adjoining flank boundary must 
be maintained”.  Although it is good practice to apply this rule to new dwellings 
to ensure sufficient spacing is maintained to prevent overdevelopment across 
plot widths where spacing is typically more generous, the SDG does not 
explicitly apply to new developments.  

10.11 In this case, the proposed dwellings would both be set in approximately 
1.175m from their common boundary, and therefore the separation distance 
from flank-to-flank would be 2.35m.  The proposed dwelling adjacent to 
number 19 would be set in approximately 1.18m from the common boundary 
and the proposed dwelling adjacent to number 21 would be set in 
approximately 1.5m from the common boundary.  The spacing distances 
between the proposed dwellings and neighbouring properties would accord 
with the Council’s SPG in this respect.

10.12 It is recognised that planning permission was very recently refused by the 
Development Management Committee (21 June 2018), for a development of a 
similar nature at 32 Upland Drive.  In this case Members took a contrary view 
to the officer recommendation and refused planning permission on the 
grounds that the development would be cramped within the plot due to 
insufficient spacing.  Harm to the character and appearance of the existing 
area would be caused as a result.  In that case, the proposed dwellings were 
set-in 1.1 and 1.4 metres from their common boundary, and therefore 2.5m’s 

Page 10



flank-to-flank.  A set-in distance of between 1.1-1.2m would also have been 
maintained between the common boundaries of the neighbouring properties 
on either side.  

10.13 Whilst the spacing distances between this proposal and that recently refused 
at number 32 are similar, the dwellings proposed under this application are 
smaller in terms of height, width and scale.  Also, the use of a fully hipped roof 
form compared to a gable front façade in the case of number 32, assists in 
reducing both bulk and massing.

10.14 In terms of the proposed single dormer, the Council’s SDG outlines that 
dormers should be subservient to the roof a property and maintain at least a 
1m set distance from flanks.  The proposed dormer would be modest in scale, 
would not dominate the roof-slope and is sited in such a position on the roof 
so as to not appear unduly prominent in the streetscene.

10.15 Although the development would introduce notably more built form into the 
plot, the dwellings have been very carefully designed in term of siting, scale, 
bulk and massing so as not to appear cramped within the plot.  The style of 
properties along Upland Drive is varied, which does allow for a degree of 
flexibility in terms of design of future development.  It is considered for the 
above reasons that the proposed development would acceptably respect and 
relate to the character and appearance of the existing area.  Subject to the 
suggested planning condition, the proposal is in accordance with Policies D1 
and D2 of the Local Plan, Policy SP9 of the Emerging Local Plan and the 
NPPF.  Precise details of external materials can be secured through a 
planning condition.  

2. Impact on living conditions of neighbouring occupiers and future 
occupiers 

Living conditions of neighbouring occupiers

10.16 The main properties which may be affected by the proposed development are 
the two immediate neighbouring properties at 19 and 21 Upland Drive.  All 
other nearby properties are considered to be sufficiently removed from the 
application site so as to remain unaffected by the proposal in this respect.

10.17 Councillor Stephen Boulton and the occupier of 19 Upland Drive have raised 
concerns regarding the effect of the proposal on residential amenity.  The 
effect of the proposed development upon the living conditions of the two 
immediate neighbouring properties are discussed below 

19 Upland Drive 

10.18 19 Upland Drive is located to the immediate south-east of the application site 
and comprises a two storey detached dwelling with integral single storey side 
double garage.  This double garage is located on the side of building closest 
to the application site, set in approximately 1m from the shared boundary.  
The two storey flank wall of 19, facing the application site, is set in 
approximately 3.77m from the shared boundary.  The nearest habitable 

Page 11



windows of 19 are contained within the two storey part of the building on its 
rear elevation.

10.19 The proposed dwellings would extend further back onto the application site 
relative to the existing situation – approximately 6.3m beyond the rear wall of 
19 Upland Drive at two storey level and an additional 4m including the single 
storey rear element.  The height of the proposed dwelling would match that of 
number 19.

10.20 Given the extent of set-back between the two storey part of number 19 and 
the nearest proposed dwelling (at both single and two storey height), hipped 
roof form of the proposed dwellings, its orientation and the positioning of the 
nearest habitable windows serving number 19, it is not considered that 
proposed dwellings would appear unduly dominant or result in any adverse 
loss of light from this neighbouring property.

10.21 In terms of privacy, number 19 would be faced by one first floor side windows 
(serving a bathroom) and two side rooflights (serving a bedroom).  The first 
floor side window is annotated to be glazed in obscure glass and the 
rooflights are high level.  These measures ensure that the privacy of the 
occupiers of number 19 would be maintained this and can be controlled 
through a suitably worded planning condition. 

21 Upland Drive 

10.22 21 Upland Drive is located to the immediate north-west of the application site 
and comprises a two storey detached dwelling.  The proposed development 
would not be unduly dominant or result in any adverse loss of light from these 
adjacent properties, as a result of either the length of projection, height or 
proximity of the development to the shared boundary.

10.23 In terms of privacy, number 21 would be faced by one first floor side window 
(serving a landing) and two side rooflights (serving a bedroom and landing). 
The first floor side window is annotated to be glazed in obscure glass.  The 
height of the rooflights and their positioning relative to internal finished floor 
level would not result in any adverse levels of overlooking toward number 21.

Living conditions of future occupiers of development 

10.24 The size of the proposed dwellings and their room sizes exceed the Nationally 
Described Space Standards for C3 Dwellings.  The levels of daylight, sunlight, 
outlook and visual amenity within each dwelling and the garden areas are 
acceptable.  Also the extent and design of the amenity areas would meet the 
reasonable needs of its users.

10.25 Each proposed dwelling would not appear unduly dominant or result in any 
adverse loss of light between in relation to each other, as a result of either the 
length of projection, height or proximity to the shared boundary.

10.26 In terms of privacy, the proposed dwellings would have both first floor side 
windows and second floor side windows and rooflights facing each other, 
including a single dormer window.  The first floor side windows are annotated 

Page 12



to be glazed in obscure glass, the rooflights would be high-level and the 
positioning of the dormer window would not present any direct overlooking to 
the facing dwelling.

3. Highway and parking considerations

10.27 In terms of access arrangements, no objection has been raised by the 
Highway Authority.  Upland Drive is an unclassified road but not maintainable 
by the Highway Authority and instead is maintained at cost to the local 
residents.  The Highway Authority has no jurisdiction over this road but have 
commented that visibility from the proposed new access appears to be 
sufficient, particularly noting that Upland Drive is subject to an informal 15mph 
speed limit and features traffic calming along its’ length.

10.28 Upland Drive connects with the local public highway network at both ends, 
emerging onto A1000 Great North Road.  

10.29 The net increase of one dwelling is unlikely to result in a material impact on 
the operation of these junctions or the local network and as such it is unlikely 
that the development will result in a material impact to highway capacity or 
safety.

10.30 Car parking standards are set out within the Council’s Supplementary 
Planning Guidance Parking Standards, adopted in January 2004 (the SPG 
Parking Standards).  In August 2014 the Cabinet Housing and Planning Panel 
approved the Interim Policy for Car Parking Standards and Garage Sizes 
document.  This document identifies the car parking standards set out in the 
SPG Parking Standards as guidelines rather than maximums and states that 
parking provision will be assessed on a case by case basis.

10.31 Each dwelling would have provision for up to three off street parking spaces in 
accordance with the Council’s SPG.  The site is also located within a 
reasonably sustainable location and there is no substantive evidence of car 
parking pressures along Upland Drive.

10.32 Whilst concern has been raised by a resident regarding this road having poor 
parking availability, it is considered that the proposed development would 
provide an appropriate level of parking provision, in accordance with Local 
Plan Policy M14, the SPG, Interim Parking Standards and requirements of the 
NPPF.

11 Other considerations 

i) Refuse and Recycling 

11.1 The Council’s Client Services Department have been consulted for this 
application and consider that the development can be incorporated into the 
Council’s existing Alternate Refuse and Recycling Scheme.  As such, no 
objection is presented.

Page 13



ii) Landscaping 

11.2 Policy D8 of the Local Plan outlines that this type of development should 
include landscaping as an integral part of the overall design.  Policy SADM16 
of the Emerging Local Plan states that proposals will be expected to sit 
comfortably within the wider landscape setting.

11.3 The ‘site and roof plan’ drawing give an indication of how the site would be 
landscaped in a broad sense.  The proportion of soft to hard-landscaping 
appear acceptable.  Precise details of soft and hard-landscaping, including 
boundary treatments, can be secured through a suitably worded planning 
condition, in the interest of good design and maintaining the visual character 
of the area.

iii)Ecology 

11.4 Hertfordshire Ecology have been consulted on this application given the 
location of the site within a low density pattern of development, with mature 
trees nearby and records of roosting bats within the wider area.  Hertfordshire 
Ecology were also consulted on the similar proposal at 32 Upland Drive 
(refused on 21 June 2018) and advised that a Preliminary Roost Assessment 
was required.

11.5 Notwithstanding the above, in this case, Hertfordshire Ecology have advised 
that the application property appears to be sub-optimal for bats to use for 
roosting.  This is because it looks to be in very good condition with a well-
sealed roof and ridge tiles.  Notwithstanding this, as bats are known to be in 
the area, an informative is suggested advising the developer that if bats, or 
evidence of them, is discovered during the course of any works, work must 
stop immediately and advice sought on how to proceed lawfully from an 
appropriately qualified and experienced Ecologist or Natural England. 

iv)Removal of permitted development rights

11.6 The two dwellings would benefit from permitted development rights.  The 
proposed development has been carefully designed to be in keeping with the 
character and context of the area and ensure that the living conditions of 
neighbouring and future occupiers would not be harmed.  In the interest of 
maintaining high quality design it would be reasonable to impose a planning 
condition withdrawing permitted development rights under Class A 
(enlargement, improvement or other alteration of a dwellinghouse) and Class 
B (the enlargement of a dwellinghouse consisting of an addition or alteration to 
its roof).

v) Provision of fire hydrants

11.7 Hertfordshire Fire & Rescue Service have been consulted for this application 
and requested a planning obligation toward fire hydrants to minimise the 
impact of the development on Hertfordshire County Council Services for the 
local community.

Page 14



11.8 It is considered that such a requirement can secured by way of a suitably 
worded planning condition rather than a planning obligation in this case.

vi) Other non-material neighbour representations 

11.9 Neighbour representations have also been received regarding potential 
impacts this development could have on the road surface and also pressure 
on drainage network, particularly given the experience of similar building 
works along Upland Drive in recent times.

11.9 Upland Drive is a private road which the Highway Authority have no 
jurisdiction over.  Therefore, any damage to the road surface, blocking of the 
road by construction vehicles, or storage of building materials outside of the 
application site as a result of this development could not be enforced by either 
the Highway Authority or the Local Planning Authority.  

11.10 Concerns have also been expressed by neighbours that the development will 
increase pressure on the drainage network.  The nature and scale of the 
proposed development does not trigger consultations from either the Lead 
Local Flood Authority or Environment Agency under relevant legislation.  
Consequently, any additional pressures upon the drainage network would be 
outside of the control of the planning system.

Conditions 

11.11 The National Planning Policy Guidance governs the use of conditions in 
planning and the power to impose conditions when granting planning 
permission is very wide.  If used properly, conditions can enhance the quality 
of development and enable many development proposals to proceed where it 
would otherwise have been necessary to refuse planning permission.  The 
objectives of planning, however, are best served when that power is exercised 
in such a way that conditions are clearly seen to be fair, reasonable and 
practicable.  Conditions should only be imposed where they are both 
necessary and reasonable, as well as enforceable, precise and relevant both 
to planning and to the development to be permitted.  In considering whether a 
particular condition is necessary, both officers and members should ask 
themselves whether planning permission would have to be refused if that 
condition were not to be imposed. If it would not, then the condition needs 
special and precise justification.

12 Conclusion

12.1 For the above reasons, and subject to the suggested planning conditions, the 
proposal represents an acceptable form of development, in accordance with 
relevant local and national planning policies, comprising; Policies SD1, 
GBSP2, R1, H2, D1, D2, D8 and M14 of the Local Plan, in conjunction with 
the Council’s SDG, SPG and Interim Parking Standards, Policies SP1, SP3, 
SP9, SADM1, SADM2, SADM11 and SADM12 of the Emerging Local Plan; 
and the requirements of the NPPF

Page 15



13 Recommendation

13.1 It is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to the 
following conditions:

1. No development shall take place until samples of the materials to be used in 
the construction of the external surfaces of the building hereby granted have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The development shall be implemented using the approved materials and 
subsequently, the approved materials shall not be changed.

REASON:  To ensure a satisfactory standard of development in the interests 
of visual amenity in accordance with Policies D1 and D2 of the Welwyn 
Hatfield District Plan 2005, Policy SP9 of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council Draft Local Plan Proposed Submission August 2016, and 
requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012.

2. No development shall take place until full details on a suitably scaled plan of 
both hard and soft landscape works have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The development shall not be carried 
out other than in accordance with the approved details.  The landscaping 
details to be submitted shall include:

(a) means of enclosure and boundary treatments
(b) hard surfacing, other hard landscape features and materials
(c) planting plans, including specifications of species, sizes, planting 

centres, number and percentage mix, and details of seeding or turfing

REASON:  The landscaping of this site is required in order to protect and 
enhance the existing visual character of the area and to reduce the visual and 
environmental impacts of the development hereby permitted in accordance 
with Policies GBSP2, D2 and D8 of the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005, 
Policies SP9 and SADM16 of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Draft 
Local Plan Proposed Submission August 2016, and requirements of the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2012.

3. All agreed landscaping comprised in the above details of landscaping shall be 
carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation 
of the first building, the completion of the development, or in agreed phases 
whichever is the sooner: and any plants which within a period of 5 years from 
the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously 
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of similar size and species.  All landscape works shall be carried out in 
accordance with the guidance contained in British Standards 8545: 2014.

REASON: To ensure proper implementation of the agreed landscape details 
in the interest of the amenity value of the development in accordance with 
Policies GBSP2, D2 and D8 of the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005, 
Policies SP9 and SADM16 of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Draft 

Page 16



Local Plan Proposed Submission August 2016, and requirements of the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2012.

4. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, details of 
fire hydrants or other measure to protect the development from fire must be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Such 
details shall include provision of the mains water services for the development 
whether by means of existing water services, new mains or extension to or 
diversion of existing services where the provision of fire hydrants is 
considered necessary.  The proposed development shall not be occupied until 
such measures have been implemented in accordance with the approved 
details.  The approved scheme must be permanently retained in accordance 
with the approved plans and details.

REASON: To ensure that there is appropriate fire safety equipment for the 
development in the interests of fire safety in accordance with Policy M4 of 
Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005 and the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2012.

5. Any upper floor window located in a wall or roof slope forming a side elevation 
of the dwellings hereby approved must be obscure-glazed and non-opening 
unless the parts of the window which can be opened are more than 1.7 
metres above the floor of the room in which the window is installed, and shall 
be retained in that form thereafter.

REASON:   To protect the residential amenity and living conditions of 
adjoining occupiers in accordance with Policy D1 of the Welwyn Hatfield 
District Plan 2005, Policy SADM11 of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
Draft Local Plan Proposed Submission August 2016, and requirements of the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2012.

6. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-
enacting that Order with or without modification), no development within 
Classes A and B of Part 1 of Schedule 2 shall take place.

REASON:  To enable the Local Planning Authority to fully consider the effects 
of development normally permitted by that order in the interests of maintaining 
the visual amenity of the site and its immediate locality, and protecting the 
living conditions of future occupants in accordance with Policies D1 and D2 of 
the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005, Policies SP9 and SADM11 of the 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Draft Local Plan Proposed Submission 
August 2016, and requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework 
2012.

Page 17



7. The development/works shall not be started and completed other than in 
accordance with the approved plans and details:

 
Plan 
Number

Revision 
Number

Details Received Date

1281GS_FU
L1:SH1

A Location Plan and Existing 
Block Plan

26 March 2018

1281GS_FU
L1:SH2

A Existing Ground Floor Plan 26 March 2018

1281GS_FU
L1:SH4

A Existing Front Elevation 26 March 2018

1281GS_FU
L1:SH5
1281GS_FU
L1:SH6
1281GS_FU
L1:SH7
1281GS_FU
L1:SH3
1281GS_FU
L1:SH8
1281GS_FU
L1:SH9
1281GS_FU
L1:SH10
1281GS_FU
L1:SH11
1281GS_FU
L1:SH12
1281GS_FU
L1:SH13
1281GS_FU
L1:SH14
1281GS_FU
L1:SH15
1281GS_FU
L1:SH16
1281GS_FU
L1:SH17
1281GS_FU
L1:SH18
1281GS_FU
L1:SH19
1281GS_FU
L1:SH20
1281GS_FU
L1:SH21

A

A

A

A

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

Existing Rear Elevation

Existing Side Elevation N-
W
Existing Side Elevation S-E

Existing Roof Plan 

Proposed Block Plan 

Proposed Site Plan 
(Ground Floor)
Proposed Site Plan (Roof)

Proposed Ground Floor 
Plan 
Proposed First Floor Plan 

Proposed Second Floor 
Plan 
Proposed Roof Plan 

Proposed Front Elevation 

Proposed Rear Elevation 

Proposed Side Elevation 
N-W (House 1)
Proposed Side Elevation 
N-W (House 2)
Proposed Side Elevation S-
E (House 1)
Proposed Side Elevation S 
E (House 2)
Proposed Section A-A

26 March 2018

26 March 2018

26 March 2018

26 March 2018

18 May 2018

18 May 2018

18 May 2018

18 May 2018

18 May 2018

18 May 2018

18 May 2018

18 May 2018

18 May 2018

18 May 2018

18 May 2018

18 May 2018

18 May 2018

18 May 2018

 
REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved plans and details.

Page 18



1. POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE STATEMENT

The decision has been made taking into account, where practicable and 
appropriate the requirements of paragraphs 186-187 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework and material planning considerations do not justify a decision 
contrary to the development plan (see Officer’s report which can be viewed on 
the Council's website or inspected at these offices).

Informatives:

1. This permission does not convey any consent which may be required under 
any legislation other than the Town and Country Planning Acts. Any permission 
required under the Building Regulations or under any other Act, must be 
obtained from the relevant authority or body e.g. Fire Officer, Health and Safety 
Executive, Environment Agency (Water interest etc. Neither does this 
permission negate or override any private covenants which may affect the land.

2. The development will involve the numbering of properties and/or the naming of 
new streets. The applicant MUST contact Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, 
Environmental Services (01707 357 000) before any name or number is 
proposed. This is a requirement of the Public Health Act 1875 and Public 
Health (Amendment) Act 1907.

3. The applicant is advised to take account the provisions of The Party Wall Act 
1996 insofar as the carrying out of development affecting or in close proximity 
to a shared boundary.

4. If bats or evidence of bats is discovered during the course of any works, work 
must stop immediately and advice must be sought on how to proceed lawfully 
from an appropriately qualified and experienced Ecologist or Natural England 
tel: 0300 060 3900. 

David Elmore (Development Management)
Date: 22 June 2018
Expiry date: 20 July 2018

Page 19



Page 20



Part I
Executive Member: Councillor Boulton

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE – 19 JULY 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND 
GOVERNANCE) 

6/2018/1061/HOUSE

11 ELM DRIVE, HATFIELD, AL10 8NR

ERECTION OF FIRST FLOOR EXTENSION ABOVE EXISTING GROUND FLOOR 
EXTENSION 

APPLICANT: Mr Seeneevassen

(Hatfield South West)

1 Site Description

1.1 The site is located on the east side of Elm Drive and consists of a two storey 
detached dwelling. The area is residential in character featuring properties of similar 
style and design. The dwelling is sited on the inside of a bend in Elm Drive, 
exposing the north west flank wall to public vantage. Where the host dwelling and 
neighbouring property No.9 Elm Drive to the south east face in the same north east 
direction, No.13 Elm Drive, by virtue of the 90 degree bend in Elm Drive, faces 
north west. 

2 The Proposal

2.1 This application is for the erection of a first floor rear extension above an existing 
single storey rear extension which would measure approximately 3.6m in depth, 
with a width of approximately 8.6m. It would be stepped in from the flank wall 
nearby No. 9 Elm Drive by approximately 2.7m. The proposed roof would be set 
down from the ridge line of the existing dwelling by approximately 0.7m and would 
consist of two pitched roofs which would create a central valley between them. 
These roofs would also be hipped back towards the existing roof, with their slopes 
matching the existing roof slope. The proposed extension would contain two 
windows within its rear elevation which would be centrally located under the two 
pitched roofs of the extension. The proposed extension would not include any 
windows within its side elevations.

2.2 The proposed development would be constructed using brick work and roof tiles 
that would match the existing dwelling.

2.3 It is important to note that this application differs from that refused within application 
6/2017/1133/HOUSE in the following ways;

 The proposed extension would not result in the angle of the rear slope of the 
main roof being substantially altered as previously proposed

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



 The proposed roof would be set down from the existing ridgeline of the main 
roof of the dwelling by approximately 0.7m

 The new roof would consist of two pitched roofs, which would be hipped back 
towards the main roof, with a central valley between the two roofs

 In addition, this application does not seek permission for the front extension 
or single storey rear extension which have been considered acceptable 
under 6/2017/2110/HOUSE & 6/2017/2111/LAWP. The extensions approved 
by these applications are at an advance stage of construction.  

3 Reason for Committee Consideration

3.1 This application is presented to the Development Management Committee because 
Councillor Thorpe has objected and called-in the application.

4 Relevant Planning History

4.1 Application Number: 6/2018/1060/LAWP
Decision: Refused
Decision Date: 18 June 2018
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for the erection of a first floor rear extension

4.2 Application Number: 6/2017/2111/LAWP
Decision: Granted
Decision Date: 16 November 2017
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for the erection of single storey rear extension

4.3 Application Number: 6/2017/2110/HOUSE
Decision: Granted
Decision Date: 16 November 2017
Proposal: Erection of single storey front extension

4.4 Application Number: 6/2017/1133/HOUSE
Decision: Refused
Decision Date: 25 July 2017
Proposal: Erection of single storey front extension and two storey rear extension

Reason for refusal: 
The proposed two storey rear extension and it proposed roof form, by virtue of its 
scale and bulk, as well as the alterations in the roof pitch, would fail to remain 
subordinate to the host dwelling and would be of poor quality, unreflective design. 
Due to the highly perceptible nature of the additions, the out of context, incongruous 
development would cause harm to the character of the surrounding area.

5 Relevant Planning Policy

5.1 National Planning Policy Framework 2012 (NPPF) 

5.2 Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005 (Local Plan)

5.3 Draft Local Plan Proposed Submission 2016 (Emerging Local Plan 2016)

5.4 Supplementary Design Guidance 2005 (SDG)

5.5 Supplementary Planning Guidance, Parking Standards 2004 (SPG)

Page 22



5.6 Interim Policy for Car Parking Standards and Garage Sizes 2014 (Interim Car 
Parking Policy)

6 Site Designation 

6.1 The site lies within the town of Hatfield as designated in the Welwyn Hatfield District 
Plan 2005.

7 Representations Received 

7.1 The application was advertised by means of neighbour notification letters and a site 
notice. One representation has been received, objecting to the application. This is 
summarised below:

 Concern that the proposal would be overbearing 
 Loss privacy within their rear garden
 This proposal, along with 6/2017/2110/HOUSE and 6/2017/2111/LAWP, 

represents an attempt to get permission for what was refused under 
6/2017/1133/HOUSE

 Allowing this application would create a precedent for similar applications 
within the immediate area

 The proposal would result in a loss of light 

7.2 Councillor Thorpe – Objection and call-in stated as follows:

“I believe this development would deliver an overbearing loss of light on 
neighbouring properties and should not be permitted. I have been contacted by 
local residents with concerns over this, and considering similar previous 
applications have been refused, if this intended to be approved it should be 
determined by the DMC committee.” 

9 Town Council Representations

7.3 Hatfield Town Council – Objected with the following: 

“Members wished to support the neighbours objection due to a concern at the 
impact on number 9 Elm Drive, and a possible lack of light. Also concern on the 
impact on the surrounding area.”

8 Analysis

8.1 The main planning issues to be considered in the determination of this application 
are:

1. Quality of design and impact on the character and appearance of the area 
(NPPF; Policies D1, D2, D8, GBSP2 and SDG of the Local Plan; Policy SP9 of 
the Emerging Local Plan)

2. Impact on the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers and future 
occupiers (NPPF; Policy D1 and SDG of the Local Plan; Policy SADM11 of the 
Emerging Local Plan)

3. Other considerations 

1. Quality of the design and impact on the character and appearance of the 
area 

Page 23



8.2 District Plan Policies D1 and D2, Emerging Local Plan Policy SP9 and the 
Supplementary Design Guidance (SDG), seek to ensure a high quality of design 
which relates to the character and context of the dwelling and surrounding area. 
The policies require extensions to complement and reflect design and character, be 
subordinate in scale, and not look cramped within the site in regards to bulk. These 
policies are in line with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) section 7 in 
that planning should require good design.  

8.3 The proposed two storey rear extension would be constructed on top of the existing 
single storey rear extension and would project the same distance from the original 
rear wall of the dwelling, approximately 3.6m. Although the proposed extension 
would be flush with the existing single storey extension on its northern elevation, the 
proposed extension would be stepped in from the flank wall which faces No. 9 Elm 
Drive by approximately 2.7m. It is important to note that while the proposed 
northern elevation of the extension would be flush with the existing single storey 
extension, this elevation would be set in from the boundary with No. 13 by 
approximately 1.6m. Unlike the roof proposed within 6/2017/2110/HOUSE, the roof 
form proposed within this application would contain two pitched roofs with a central 
valley and it would not result altering of the angle within the rear roof slope of the 
main roof. In addition, the ridge lines for this proposed roof structure would be set 
down from the ridge line of the main roof by approximately 0.7m and the rear 
projections of these roofs would be hipped back to the main roof. 

8.4 The amount of development proposed would notably increase the bulk of the 
existing modest dwelling at first floor level, but on balance in this case, this would 
be acceptable. This is because it is considered that the setting down of the ridge 
lines of the extension by approximately 0.7m from the existing ridge, would create 
ridge lines that would appear subservient to the ridge line of the host property. 
When these changes are combined with the stepping in of the extension from the 
existing southern flank wall of the dwelling, by approximately 2.7m, it is considered 
that these features would make the proposed extension suitably subordinate to the 
existing dwelling. 

8.5 It is considered that the changes to the proposed roof of the extension would 
overcome the Council’s previous concerns relating to the roof design within 
6/2017/2110/HOUSE. This is because the roof form proposed within this application 
would be less bulky and clearly subservient to the main roof of the existing dwelling, 
and would not result in a change to the rear roof slope of the property which fails to 
respect, or relate, to the existing dwelling, or the immediate area, as proposed 
within 6/2017/2110/HOUSE. As a consequence, the proposals would therefore 
respect and reflect the existing dwelling, and built form in the immediate area. 

8.6 The proposed use of matching materials within both the roof and brickwork of the 
proposed extension would be acceptable in design terms because this would be in 
keeping to the host property. The fenestration within the proposed extensions would 
be in keeping with the existing fenestration of the property and the immediate area, 
and would therefore be acceptable. 

8.7 On balance, the proposed development, by virtue of the scale, height, bulk and 
design of proposed extension, would be subservient and subordinate in scale to the 
existing dwelling. The proposal would not result in cramped or overly dominant 
addition which would fail to respect the form and scale of the original dwelling. 
Accordingly, the proposal would represent a good quality of design and would be 
acceptable to the provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012, 

Page 24



Policies D1 and D2 of the District Plan 2005, Emerging Local Plan Policy SP9 and 
Supplementary Design Guidance 2005.

2. Impact on living conditions and the residential amenity of adjoining 
neighbours

8.8 With regard to the impact on the amenity of adjoining neighbours, Policy D1 and the 
SDG states that any extension should not cause loss of light or appear unduly 
dominant from an adjoining property. Policy SADM11 aims to preserve 
neighbouring amenity.  Furthermore, guidance in paragraph 17 of the NPPF is to 
always seek to secure high quality design and good standard of amenity for all 
existing and future occupiers of land and buildings.

No. 9 Elm Drive

8.9 No.9 Elm Drive is sited to the south of the host dwelling, at a lower ground level by 
virtue of the topography of the area and set slightly closer to the street than the host 
dwelling. The neighbouring property benefits from a single storey rear extension 
with a pitched roof and rear facing gable end running nearby the boundary shared 
with the host dwelling. This extension has left a single kitchen window within the 
north west flank elevation of No.9 Elm Drive being the only source of light into this 
room, other than some limited light from a window within the dining room in the rear 
extension.

8.10 Despite the stepped nature of the two dwellings, by which the existing host rear wall 
is further back than the neighbouring dwelling, the proposed 3.6m deep two storey 
rear extension would not extend beyond the rear wall of the existing single storey 
addition to No.9 Elm Drive. Furthermore, the proposed two storey rear extension 
would be spaced approximately 2.7m from the shared boundary, with a further 
approximate 2m separating the built forms on the neighbouring side of the shared 
boundary. 

8.11 In terms of loss of light, the only window and room which it is considered the 
extension may impact on light is the side window serving the kitchen. Given the 
location of the existing kitchen window, within close proximity to the two storey side 
wall of the host dwelling in the north west facing flank wall of the neighbouring 
dwelling, it is not considered that the window currently benefits from a great deal of 
direct sun or daylight. This is primarily the case as shadows cast by built form are 
cast predominately to the north, as well as west to east throughout the day. 
Considering the step in of approximately 2.7m from the flank wall of the two storey 
rear extension, the amount of direct sunlight and daylight received by the kitchen 
window would not be unduly impacted as a result of the addition.

8.12 It is considered that the distance between first floor rear facing windows in the 
adjoining property and the proposed extension would result in only views from 
oblique angles of the two storey rear extension proposed. Whilst there would be 
some rearward facing views of the two storey addition from the garden of No.9, it is 
not considered that the additions would appear unduly dominant and impact outlook 
to a detrimental extent.

8.13 In terms of privacy, views from windows within the rear elevation of the extension 
would predominantly be to the rear garden of the application site.  Whilst there is 
potential for overlooking to parts of the rear gardens of No. 9, the degree of 
overlooking would not be fundamentally different from that which currently exists 

Page 25



and it would be consistent with a neighbouring relationship generally expected 
between residential properties.  

No.13 Elm Drive

8.14 No.13 Elm Drive is sited to the north west of the host dwelling and proposed 
additions. The neighbouring property is oriented at a right angle to the host 
dwelling, resulting in the rear elevation of No.13 facing the side elevation of the host 
dwelling. The existing north west flank wall of the host dwelling is sited 
approximately 11m from the first floor south east facing rear wall of No.13, and 
approximately 7.5m from the ground floor south east facing rear wall of No.13 
where the property hosts a single storey rear addition. No.13 is located on a higher 
ground level by virtue of the surrounding topography.

8.15 Whilst the two storey rear addition would add bulk to the existing dwelling, it is 
considered given the existing relationship between dwellings in terms of their 
access to light and outlook, that the impact of the extension would not be 
unacceptable.

8.16 In terms of privacy, the existing fenestration detailing only allows oblique views from 
the first floor windows towards the rear elevation of the neighbouring dwelling, and 
the further extension of these windows to the rear would result in more oblique 
viewing angles. The views from windows within the rear elevation of the extension 
would predominantly be to the rear garden of the application site. It is therefore 
considered that the proposed extension is unlikely to have an impact on the levels 
of privacy that No. 13 currently enjoys. 

8.17 In summary, giving consideration to the scale of the proposal, the siting of windows 
in the adjoining properties, the orientation of the dwelling, the size of neighbouring 
plots, separation distance and boundary screening, it is considered that the 
proposal would not have an unreasonable impact on light amenity or the level of 
privacy afforded to the neighbouring residencies and would not appear visually 
overbearing.  Overall it is considered that the amenity of the adjoining occupiers 
would be maintained to an acceptable level.  In this respect, no objections are raised 
with regard to Local Plan Policy D1, Emerging Local Plan Policies SADM11 and the 
SDG or the relevant paragraphs of the NPPF.

Other considerations 

8.18 It is noted that the neighbour objection raises concerns about this proposal setting a 
precedent for similar forms of development within the immediate area. It is 
important to note that each planning application is assessed on a case by case 
basis and that simply because the development within this application may be 
acceptable, given the specific constraints and limitation of this site, it does not mean 
that it would necessarily be acceptable on another property within the immediate 
area. Furthermore, as discussed above it is considered that this development meets 
the Council’s relevant policies in relation to the proposed form of development with 
the result that if another application were to be submitted for a property within the 
immediate area which also complied to the Council’s policies it would only be 
reasonable and appropriate that the Council approve such an application.

8.19 With regards to the neighbour comments that this application is part of a strategy to 
get planning permission for what was previously refused 6/2017/2110/HOUSE, it is 
important to state that this application has been assessed in the same manner as 
any planning application would be assessed. As already discussed above, there are 

Page 26



a number of material factors within this application which differ from that submitted 
as part of 6/2017/2110/HOUSE and this report has clearly set out why the 
recommendation within this report is different to the decision reach in regards to 
6/2017/2110/HOUSE.   

9 Conclusion

9.1 The proposed extension would be of good quality design which would not add bulk 
to the extent where the resulting dwelling would look cramped within its site, would 
not impinge on the character and context of the area and would maintain the 
amenity of the occupiers of adjoining dwellings. Accordingly, the proposal complies 
with Policy D1, D2 and GBSP2 of the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005, Policies 
SP1, SP9, SADM11 of Emerging Local Plan 2016, Supplementary Design 
Guidance Statement of Council Policy 2005 and relevant parts of the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2012.

11. Recommendation  

11.1 It is recommended that planning permission be approved subject to the following 
condition:

1. The brickwork, roof tile, bond, mortar, detailing, guttering, soffits and other external 
decorations of the approved extension must match the existing dwelling in relation 
to colour and texture.

REASON:  To ensure a satisfactory standard of development in the interests of 
visual amenity in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and 
Policies D1 and D2 of the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005.

2. The development/works shall not be started and completed other than in 
accordance with the approved plans and details:

Plan 
Number

Revision 
Number

Details Received Date

06 Block Plan 24 April 2018
Location 
Plan

Location Plan 24 April 2018

01 Existing Floor Plans 24 April 2018
02 Existing/Proposed 

Elevations 1
24 April 2018

03 A Existing/Proposed 
Elevations 

21 June 2018

04 Proposed Ground Floor 
Plan

24 April 2018

05 A Proposed First Floor Plan 21 June 2018

SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE GRANT OF PERMISSION:

The decision has been made taking into account, where practicable and appropriate 
the requirements of paragraphs 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework 
and material planning considerations do not justify a decision contrary to the 
development plan (see Officer’s report which can be inspected at these offices). 

Page 27



Informatives:

1. This permission does not convey any consent which may be required under any 
legislation other than the Town and Country Planning Acts. Any permission required 
under the Building Regulations or under any other Act, must be obtained from the 
relevant authority or body e.g. Fire Officer, Health and Safety Executive, 
Environment Agency (Water interest etc. Neither does this permission negate or 
override any private covenants which may affect the land.

2. Any damage to the grass verges caused by the development/works hereby 
approved is the responsibility of the applicant and must be re-instated to their 
original condition, within one month of the completion of the development/works. If 
damage to the verges are not repaired then the Council and/or Highway Authority 
will take appropriate enforcement action to remedy any harm caused.

William Myers, (Development Management)
Date 21/06/2018
Expiry Date: 20/07/2018

Page 28



Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



             Part I
Executive Member: Councillor Boulton

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE – 19 JULY 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 

6/2018/0679/VAR

MEADOW FARM, NORTHAW ROAD WEST, NORTHAW ROAD, POTTERS BAR, EN6 
4QX

VARIATION OF CONDITION 2 AND 3 ON PLANNING PERMISSION E6/1973/1887/, 
DATED 16/08/1973

APPLICANT: Mr A Best

(Northaw and Cuffley)

1 Site Description

1.1 The application site is situated on the south side of Northaw Road West and 
consists of a detached two storey dwelling. It is important to note that none of the 
land that surrounds the dwelling is included within the application site. The 
property is set back from the road by approximately 40m and is accessed by a 
driveway to the north west of the property. The dwelling is located approximately 
1.5km from Northaw and approximately 1.8km from the shops in Cuffley.   

1.2 In order for the applicant to be able to establish whether they are able to use the 
land that surrounds the dwelling for a residential purpose they would need to 
submit either a full planning application for the change of use of this land or a 
certificate of lawfulness, if sufficient evidence exists, to prove that the residential 
use of this land has occurred for more than 10 years.

2 The Proposal

2.1 The proposal relates to the variation of conditions 2 and 3 from planning 
permission E6/1973/1887 to allow the property to be occupied by people who are 
not involved in agriculture. Condition 2 states:

“The occupation of the dwelling shall be limited to persons wholly or 
principally employed or last employed locally in agriculture as defined in 
Section 2909(i) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1971, or in 
foresting, and the dependants of suchpersons residing with them 
(including a widow or widower of such a person).

Condition 3 states:

“The dwelling shall not be occupied except by a person who is primarlity 
engaged in carrying out or directing agricultural operations on a holding 
which includes not less than 85 acres of the agricultural land comprised in 
the holding which forms the subject of this application and consisting of 
fields Ordinance Survey numbers, 7725, 9814, 6700, 0005, 0700, 2265, 

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



4263, on the Ordinance 1:1250 scale sheets numbers TL 2901 and TL 
2902, 1970 edition.

2.2 The proposal does not relate to any material change of use of any of the land 
that surrounds the dwelling or to any operational development. 

3 Reason for Committee Consideration

3.1 This application is presented to the Development Management Committee 
because Northaw and Cuffley Parish Council has objected.

4 Relevant Planning History

Application Number: E6/1973/1887
Decision: Granted 
Decision Date: 16 August 1973
Proposal: Erection of agricultural workers cottage

5 Relevant Planning Policy

5.1 National Planning Policy Framework 2012 (NPPF) 

5.2 Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005 (Local Plan)

5.3 Draft Local Plan Proposed Submission 2016 (Emerging Local Plan 2016)

6 Site Designation 

6.1 The site lies within the Metropolitan Green Belt and the Northaw Common 
Parkland Landscape Character Area as designated in the Welwyn Hatfield 
District Plan 2005.

7 Representations Received 

7.1 The application was advertised by means of neighbour notification letters and a 
site notice.  No representations have been received.

8 Consultations Received 

8.1 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, Housing – No objection to the dwelling 
becoming market housing. 

9 Parish Council Representations

9.1 Northaw and Cuffley Parish Council has objected with the following:  “This parish 
is unusual in that we are unaware of any social housing in Cuffley. The existing 
social housing in Northaw has the equivalent access to public transport as this 
property. Due to the limited amount of social housing in the parish, we 
recommend that this property should be first considered for social housing to 
assist lower income households.” 

10 Analysis

10.1 The main planning issue to be considered in the determination of this application 
are:

Page 32



1. Impact on agricultural accommodation and affordable housing delivery 
(NPPF and Policies SD1, GBSP1, R1, RA20)

10.2 Paragraphs 11 to 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) ‘The 
presumption in favour of sustainable development’ and Part 1: ‘Achieving 
Sustainable Development’ are directly relevant to this application and particular 
account is taken of Sections 6 (Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes); 9 
(Protecting Green Belt land); and 11 (Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment) therein.

10.3 It is noted that the Government policy and guidance contained in the NPPF and 
the (National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) does not contain any provision 
in the respect of the removal of such conditions. Policy RA20 of the Council’s 
District Plan requires that planning permission for the removal of agricultural 
occupancy conditions should only be granted in exceptional circumstances and 
evidence must be submitted to prove that there is no longer any agricultural or 
forestry demand.

10.4 It is considered that occupancy conditions that have outlived their usefulness 
should not be retained.  Assessing whether there is a continuing agricultural 
need for the condition will entail a consideration of the present and long-term 
need for a dwelling in the locality.

10.5 It is not clear historically what agricultural use the land that surrounds the 
application site was used for and no information about this has been provided 
within this application. The applicant states that since 2005 he is unaware of any 
substantial agricultural activity occurring on the land associated with the 
application property but that the land has instead been used for the grazing of 
horses. The applicant does not specify whether he considers that this grazing of 
horses is an agricultural use or whether these horses were grazing the land in 
association with a livery use of the land. It is therefore not clear from this 
information as to whether this use of the land has placed the application property 
and associated land in breach of the conditions that this application seeks to 
vary. 

10.6 Planning records for application property and its associated land indicate that 
since at least 2013 the use of this land has been considered as being no longer 
solely agricultural but instead a mixed use of equestrian and agriculture uses. 
This can be seen within the officer report from S6/2013/2275/MA which states 
that the application site for this application, which included Meadow Farm and its 
associated land, states that the land included in this application contained an 
established equestrian and livery use, as well as agricultural uses. In addition, it 
is important to note that as part of this application the applicant stated, within the 
application form, that the existing use of the land was equestrian and not 
agricultural.

10.7 With regards to the occupancy of the dwelling, it is not clear from the information 
that has been provided as to when the property was last occupied in compliance 
with the condition. What the evidence provided by the applicant does 
demonstrate is that the property has been unsuccessfully marketed for the last 
two years and that the sale of the property has been frustrated by the conditions 
restricting the dwellings use. The applicant has also provided details of the 
numbers of people who visited the property during this time and a letter from the 

Page 33



agent who marketed the property stating that potential buyers have not wanted to 
purchase the property because of the restrictive conditions.

10.8 Further to the above, the Council has no register for agricultural workers who 
need accommodation within the area. As a consequence, the Council is unable 
to prove that there is an unmet need for agricultural housing within the borough.  

10.9 Given the above discussed history of the site it would appear that the land 
referred to within planning permission E6/1973/1887 is no longer within an 
agricultural use and has not been for a number of years. The agricultural tie 
which relates to the 1973 permission has served its purpose and ensured an 
agricultural occupancy whilst the farm business existed. The time elapsed shows 
that the original permission was not a ruse to circumnavigate the planning 
system. However, the situation and farming practices have changed considerably 
since the original decision reducing the need for tied residential accommodation.  

10.10 As a consequence of the fact that the land associated with the original 
permission is no longer in an agricultural use and this has been the case for a 
number of years, it would appear that the conditions have outlived their 
usefulness. In addition, as the Council has no evidence to demonstrate that there 
is an unmet need for agricultural workers accommodation within the borough it is 
unable to prove that there is an agricultural need for the property. As the Council 
is unable to prove that there is an unmet agricultural need for the dwelling it 
would be unreasonable and inappropriate for the Council to require that the use 
of Meadow Farm be restricted solely for the purposes of agriculture.  

Affordable Housing

10.11 The Parish Council have not objected to the removal of the agricultural tie from 
the property but have instead requested that the property first be considered for 
social housing before it is allowed to be used for market housing. In addition, 
Policy RA20 requires that consideration then be given as to whether the dwelling 
can satisfy an identified need for local affordable housing.

10.12 As part of this application the Council’s Housing Team have been consulted to 
establish whether they would be interested in acquiring the dwelling for 
affordable housing. The response from the Housing Team was that they would 
not be interested in taking on this property because of the costs of purchasing it 
on a competitive open market, as well as the costs of converting and remodelling 
the property, would not be value for money. In addition they stated that they do 
not seek to provide detached affordable homes. 

10.13 In this case, notwithstanding the level of need in the vicinity, the potential and 
suitability for the dwelling to be used as social housing is very limited. As a 
consequence, it is considered that although there may be a need for local 
affordable housing, for the reasons discussed above, this dwelling is not 
appropriate for this need. As a consequence, it is considered that the allowing 
this dwelling to be used as an market dwelling, with no agricultural tie would not 
be in conflict with District Plan Policy RA20  

11 Conclusion

11.1 The Local Planning Authority hold no evidence that is contrary to the information 
provided with regards to the demand for agricultural tenancy dwellings in the 
area. It is felt that the evidence sufficiently proves, within the specific context of 
the site, that there is no longer any agricultural or forestry demand for the 

Page 34



dwelling either by associated or un-associated holding in the locality. In addition, 
it is considered that the consultation response from the Council’s Housing Team 
that the dwelling is unable to satisfy an identified need for local affordable 
housing. Accordingly, the proposed development would comply with policy RA20 
of the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005 and relevant parts of the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2012 and it is recommended that the application is 
approved and condition 4 of planning permission referenced E6/1973/1887 is 
removed.

11. Recommendation  

11.1 It is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to the following 
condition:

1. The development/works shall not be started and completed other than in 
accordance with the approved plans and details:

 
Plan 
Number

Revision 
Number

Details Received Date

#00303580-
C5F452

Site Location plan 21/06/2018

SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE GRANT OF PERMISSION:

The decision has been made taking into account, where practicable and 
appropriate the requirements of paragraphs 186-187 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework and material planning considerations do not justify a decision 
contrary to the development plan (see Officer’s report which can be inspected at 
these offices). 

William Myers, (Development Management)
Date 22/06/2018

Page 35



Page 36



Part I
Executive Member: Councillor S. Boulton

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE – 19 JULY 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND 
GOVERNANCE)

Appeal Decisions 11/06/2018 to 05/07/2018

6/2017/1900/FULL

DCLG No: APP/C1950/W/17/3189521
Appeal By: Mr K Savine

Site: 2 New Road Welwyn Garden City AL8 7TX
Proposal: Erection of 4 x apartments following demolition of existing workshop

Decision: Appeal Dismissed

Decision Date: 12/06/2018
Delegated or DMC 
Decision:

Delegated

Summary: The two appeals at 2 New Road have been considered together by the Inspector 
on the basis that they are, in essence, for the same development on the same site.  
The Inspector noted that the site is located in the Green Belt where inappropriate 
development is, by definition, harmful. It is noted that paragraph 89 of the 
Framework sets out a number of exceptions to this, including the limited infilling or 
complete redevelopment of previously developed sites, whether redundant or in 
continuing use, which would not have a greater impact on the openness of the 
Green Belt, or the purposes of it, than existing development. The Inspector noted 
that, at present, the site consists of two fairly long barn type single storey 
industrial/commercial units and an area of hardstanding. The Inspector agreed 
that, although the proposed buildings would be taller, they would be considerably 
shorter, and so would not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green 
Belt. The main issues therefore were the design of the proposed buildings and 
their effect on the character and appearance of the street scene, as well as 
matters of overlooking and privacy. The Inspector found that New Road consists of 
semi-detached and detached properties along the southern side of the road, with 
development being much more sparse on the northern side. The Inspector 
considered that, due to the proposed range of materials, and the industrial 
appearance of the proposed buildings, they would appear at odds with the 
residential character of the area. As a result, it was concluded that the proposals 
would have an adverse effect upon the character and appearance of the 
surrounding area and would fail to take the opportunity to enhance the local area. 
With regard to overlooking, the Inspector also found that the proposed lounge 
windows on the upper floor of block 1 would result in overlooking of 2 New Road, 
failing to achieve a good standard of living conditions.

Page 37

Agenda Item 9



6/2017/1901/FULL

DCLG No: APP/C1950/W/17/3189522
Appeal By: Mr M White

Site: 2 New Road Welwyn Garden City AL8 7TX
Proposal: Erection of 4 x apartments following demolition of existing workshop

Decision: Appeal Dismissed

Decision Date: 12/06/2018
Delegated or DMC 
Decision:

Delegated

Summary: The two appeals at 2 New Road have been considered together by the Inspector 
on the basis that they are, in essence, for the same development on the same site.  
The Inspector noted that the site is located in the Green Belt where inappropriate 
development is, by definition, harmful. It is noted that paragraph 89 of the 
Framework sets out a number of exceptions to this, including the limited infilling or 
complete redevelopment of previously developed sites, whether redundant or in 
continuing use, which would not have a greater impact on the openness of the 
Green Belt, or the purposes of it, than existing development. The Inspector noted 
that, at present, the site consists of two fairly long barn type single storey 
industrial/commercial units and an area of hardstanding. The Inspector agreed 
that, although the proposed buildings would be taller, they would be considerably 
shorter, and so would not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green 
Belt. The main issues therefore were the design of the proposed buildings and 
their effect on the character and appearance of the street scene, as well as 
matters of overlooking and privacy. The Inspector found that New Road consists of 
semi-detached and detached properties along the southern side of the road, with 
development being much more sparse on the northern side. The Inspector 
considered that, due to the proposed range of materials, and the industrial 
appearance of the proposed buildings, they would appear at odds with the 
residential character of the area. As a result, it was concluded that the proposals 
would have an adverse effect upon the character and appearance of the 
surrounding area and would fail to take the opportunity to enhance the local area. 
With regard to overlooking, the Inspector also found that the proposed lounge 
windows on the upper floor of block 1 would result in overlooking of 2 New Road, 
failing to achieve a good standard of living conditions.

6/2017/2865/HOUSE

DCLG No: APP/C1950/D/18/3197026
Appeal By: Mr K Piggott

Site: Homerswood Cottage 7 Digswell Hill Welwyn AL6 9AH
Proposal: Erection of single storey side and rear extension

Decision: Appeal Allowed with Conditions

Decision Date: 15/06/2018
Delegated or DMC 
Decision:

Delegated

Page 38



Summary: The main issues were identified as whether the proposal was inappropriate in the 
Green Belt, the effect of the proposal on the openness of the Green Belt and, if 
inappropriate, was this harm and any other harm outweighed by other 
considerations such as to amount to very special circumstances. The Inspector 
noted the advice in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) that the 
construction of new buildings in the Green Belt should be regarded as 
inappropriate development, subject to specified exceptions. One such is the 
extension or alteration of a building, provided it does not result in disproportionate 
additions over and above the size of the original building. The Inspector found that 
the proposed extensions would amount to disproportionate development in this 
case, and were therefore inappropriate in the Green Belt. However, the Inspector 
noted that the courts have ruled that openness of the Green Belt has both spatial 
and visual dimensions. In this particular case, there would be buildings where 
previously there were none, however the main part of the extensions would be to 
the rear, not visible from the public domain and so the effect on openness was 
considered to be slight. The Inspector therefore considered whether there were 
any very special circumstances. It was noted that the property had been subject to 
a number of Lawful Development Certificates over recent years and that, were 
these to be implemented, they would have almost the same effect as the appeal 
scheme. The reason that the appeal scheme would not fall under permitted 
development was because they two elements of it would adjoin. In these 
circumstances, the Inspector found that the fall-back position was a material 
consideration which afforded significant weight in favour of the proposal such as to 
justify very special circumstances. The appeal was therefore allowed with 
conditions.

6/2017/2554/HOUSE

DCLG No: APP/C1950/D/18/3198372
Appeal By: Mrs J Titmus

Site: 22 Brocket Road Welwyn Garden City AL8 7TY
Proposal: Erection of single storey rear flat roof extension including two rooflights.

Decision: Appeal Dismissed

Decision Date: 15/06/2018
Delegated or DMC 
Decision:

Delegated

Summary: The main issues were whether the proposal would be inappropriate development 
in the Green Belt, the effect of the proposal on the openness of the Green Belt and 
whether any other considerations would amount to very special circumstances. 
The Inspector noted that the appeal property was part of a built up frontage of 
detached and semi-detached dwellings within the Green Belt on the east side of 
Brocket Road. The construction of new buildinsg in the Green Belt is normally 
inappropriate development, subject to certain exceptions including the extension or 
alteration of a building, provided that it does not result in disproportionate additions 
over and above the size of the original building. “Original” is defined in the 
Framework as a building as it existed on 1 July 1948 or, if constructed after that 
date, as it was originally built. The Inspector noted that the original house has 
already been extended by the addition of two-storey side and rear extensions and 
a ground floor extension to the front. The Inspector accepted the Council position 
that the house is about twice the size of the original and that the proposal would 

Page 39



increase this further to 140%, which was disproportionate in the Inspector’s view. 
With regard to openness, the Inspector found very limited effect given the location 
of the proposed extension. The Inspector noted that there were similar extensions 
to number 24 but found that the appeal property had been extended by a 
significantly greater amount. The Inspector found that no very special 
circumstances existed to outweigh the identified harm, and so upheld the refusal of 
planning permission.

S6/2014/2003/FP

DCLG No:  APP/C1950/D/18/3196930
Appeal By: Mr N Johnson

Site: Flint Cottage Blackhorse Lane Potters Bar EN6 3NB
Proposal: Alterations to extended dwelling to include: Removal of 5no. Dormer windows, 

removal of first floor side extension, replacement of two storey front extension with 
single storey entrance porch and retention of single storey rear extension

Decision: Appeal Dismissed

Decision Date: 18/06/2018
Delegated or DMC 
Decision:

Committee

Summary: And The main issues identified were whether the proposal would be inappropriate 
development in the Green Belt, whether there would be any other harm to the 
Green Belt, whether there are any other considerations and whether, if the 
proposal was inappropriate development in the Green Belt, that this is clearly 
outweighed by other considerations so as to amount to very special 
circumstances. The Inspector noted that a survey drawing dated 1977 showed the 
appeal building as a pair of cottages and that this was accepted as accurate in a 
previous appeal. The planning history shows that the most recent permissions for 
extensions were granted in 1994 and 2004 and that in granting permission for 
these extensions, the Council must have found that they did not represent 
disproportionate additions. However, the extensions permitted by these 
permissions do not now represent the original building for assessing the 
proportionality of the appeal proposal. The appropriate assessment for this is 
against the 1977 survey drawing.  The Inspector noted that, whilst the appeal 
proposal (to reduce the size of the building currently in situ) in itself would result in 
an increase of only approximately 10 square metres, this would be almost double 
that of the original building. Overall, the magnitude of the increase in footprint was 
considered disproportionate. Similarly, the magnitude of additions to the roof was 
also found to be disproportionate. Overall, the Inspector found that the appeal 
proposal would result in significantly larger building with a much bulkier 
appearance when compared to the original building and thus a harmful effect on 
the openness of the Green Belt. The Inspector noted that only limited weight could 
be afforded to other considerations and that these would not be sufficient to 
outweigh the identified harm.  The appeal was dismissed.

6/2017/2001/FULL

DCLG No: APP/C1950/W/17/3189898
Appeal By: Mr & Mrs Brunt

Page 40



Site: Warrenwood Manor Stables Building, Warrenwood Manor Stud, Hornbeam Lane 
Brookmans Park Hatfield AL9 6JF

Proposal: Change of use of part of first floor stables building to residential flat for use by 
visiting family members and relatives

Decision: Appeal Allowed with Conditions

Decision Date: 03/07/2018
Delegated or DMC 
Decision:

Delegated

Summary: The Inspector considered that the main issue was whether the proposal would 
represent a suitable use for the site, given the location of the building and the 
provision of amenity space and car parking. The Inspector found the site is 
essentially located in the heart of the countryside and, despite the presence of the 
Manor, is located in an isolated location where the majority of day to day needs 
would require the use of the private car. The Inspector considered at length 
whether the proposed use of the upper floor of the building would constitute an 
ancillary use to that of the Manor house. The Inspector found that, whilst there is 
clear space between the Manor and the stables building, the areas are necessarily 
separate and due to the nature of the lane that runs between them they have 
separate addresses but are clearly interlinked by their hard landscaping. The 
Inspector noted that when on site, the areas are clearly interlinked and interrelated 
by their proximity, both spatially and visually, their shared fundamental access and 
the design and detailing of the sites, as well as the equestrian use forming part of 
the Manor’s estate. The Inspector found that, given the ancillary use proposed, 
occupiers of the flat would have access to the amenity space of the Manor, and 
that there would be sufficient space for car parking to be provided. The Inspector 
therefore concluded that, subject to conditions, the proposal would represent a 
suitable use for the site. The Inspector found only very minor harm to the Green 
Belt as a result of the proposed car parking, and that the use of the upper level of 
the stables, which are of permanent and substantial construction complied with the 
requirements of paragraph 90 of the NPPF. The appeal was allowed, subject to 
conditions.

6/2016/2339/FULL

DCLG No: APP/C1950/W/17/3190002
Appeal By: Mrs M Harvey

Site: 23 Park Street Hatfield
Proposal: Change of use from Restaurant (A3) to residential (C3) and the erection of single 

storey and first floor rear extension and subdivision into four flats
Decision: Appeal Allowed with Conditions

Decision Date: 03/07/2018
Delegated or DMC 
Decision:

Committee

Summary: The main issue, reflecting the Council’s reason for decision, was whether the 
development would harm the viability and vitality of Old Hatfield and whether a 
planning obligation is necessary in relation to car parking. The Inspector noted that 
no development plan policies were cited in the reason for refusal and rather the 
Council relied upon paragraph 23 of the National Planning Policy Framework 

Page 41



(NPPF). However, the Inspector noted that this wide ranging paragraph relates to 
plan making and, amongst other things, states that planning policies should 
promote competitive town centre environments and that residential development 
can play an important role in ensuring the vitality of town centres. Whilst the 
Inspector was not clear that the appeal site was located in a designated town 
centre or not, they noted that no assessment of its health in general, or Park Street 
in particular had been provided. It was noted that the restaurant had been closed 
since 2016 and no evidence had been provided to suggest a detrimental effect on 
Old Hatfield in the intervening period. The Inspector concluded on this issue by 
stating that “as the Council has manifestly failed to substantiate its reason for 
refusal, I conclude that the development would not unacceptably harm the viability 
and vitality of Old Hatfield”. With regard to car parking, the Inspector noted that 
ample car parking was available at the time of their site visit, including in the public 
car park to the rear of the site. Whilst it was accepted that this was only a 
snapshot, no evidence had been provided to demonstrate that the area suffers 
from parking stress. The applicant had provided evidence to show that the area 
could accommodate the low level of additional parking that would be generated by 
the appeal proposal. The Inspector found that the site occupies an accessible town 
centre location with excellent connectivity to local services, shops and public 
transport. Based on all of this, the Inspector consider that the proposal would not 
have an unacceptable effect on on-street parking and so the planning obligation is 
unnecessary. The appeal was therefore allowed, subject to conditions.

Costs Decision

This appeal was also subject to an application for costs to be awarded against the 
Council. In considering this claim the Inspector considered the guidance set out in 
the Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) which sets out that costs may be awarded if 
a party has acted unreasonably and that this behaviour has directly resulted in 
unnecessary expense in the appeal process. Examples of unreasonable behaviour 
noted by the Inspector include a failure to produce evidence to substantiate each 
reason for refusal and the use of vague, generalised or inaccurate assertions 
about a proposal’s impact, which are unsupported by any objective analysis. The 
essence of the appellant’s claim was that the Council had indeed behaved in these 
ways. The Inspector noted that the decision had been made contrary to the advice 
of the Council’s own professional officers. It was noted that, whilst it is a 
fundamental principle of local decision making that a planning committee is not 
bound to follow the advice of its officers, there is a reasonable expectation that 
where this occurs, it should show reasonable planning grounds for taking a 
contrary decision and produce sounds, substantive and defensible evidence on 
appeal to support the decision in all respects. This clearly did not happen in this 
instance. As well as this, the Inspector stated that they were deeply concerned at 
the way in which issued raised during the first hearing of the application at 
committee were resolved, only for new issues to be subsequently introduced. The 
inspector found this to be both unfair and contrary to the positive and proactive 
approach embodied in the NPPF. In these circumstances a full award of costs 
against the Council was ordered.

Page 42



Part I
Main author: Chris Carter
Executive Member: Councillor S.Boulton

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 19 JULY 2018
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND 
GOVERNANCE)

PLANNING UPDATE – FUTURE PLANNING APPLICATIONS

1          Introduction

1.1      This report is for the Development Management Committee to provide a summary of 
applications that might be presented to Committee over the coming months.  If the call-in 
or application is withdrawn, the item will not be presented.

1.2      The applications should not be debated as part of this agenda, however any Councillor 
wishing to raise specific points about the proposal – such as a need for planning 
obligations or issue(s) that might not readily be apparent from the proposal or any other 
matter, may do so and the case officer will consider, where they are planning 
considerations, these matters raised as part of the future Committee report.

1.3      Appendix 1 comprises all applications that have been called-in or objected to by Town or 
Parish Councils.  Appendix 2 comprises those that are a departure from the Local Plan, 
Officers consider should be determined by Development Management Committee, the 
applicant is the Borough Council or it has an interest in the land and an objection has 
been received.

2          Recommendation

2.1      That members note this report.

Name of author                Chris Carter
Title                                  Development Management Service Manager

Appendix 1 - Applications called-in or objected to
ward description

6/2016/0270/VAR
Address Four Oaks 1-4 Great North Road Welwyn AL6 0PL
Proposal Variation of conditions 1 (occupants) and 2 (number of caravans) of 

Planning Permission N6/2010/0211/S73B to increase the number of 
caravans from 10 to 20 of which no more than 5 shall be static caravans or 
mobile homes.

Applicant Mr J Connors
Ward Welwyn West

Page 43

Agenda Item 10



Agent Mr M Green

Call-In/Objection 
from

Councillor Julie Cragg, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

Please can we call this in due to the fact that this raises a lot of issues of 
concern for the residents.
There is uneasiness about the fact that the number of caravans fluctuates 
wildly and that they residents do not appear to adhere to the planing that 
they do have.
The restrictions regarding children is there as this was not intended to be a 
permanent site but only to give stability to the children to enable them to 
attend school.
Are they planning to use caravans as an office sutie and run business's from 
there? [sic]

Call-In/Objection 
from

Caroline Williams, Welwyn Parish Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

15/03/2016 21:43 - Welwyn Parish Council at its Planning & Licensing 
Committee of the 15 March 2016 agreed to submit Major Objection.  We are 
unclear why the existing conditions have not been enforced.  We understand 
that the site was permitted as a temporary location linked to the schooling of 
the children which have now grown up and not as a permanent site.  We are 
concerned that the number of caravans has continued to increase overtime 
both with, and without, permission and Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
have previously stated that 10 is the maximum that can be accommodated.  
The existing conditions include that the land should be restored in 
accordance with the scheme previously submitted and approved by the 
planning authority as the residents may have already changed.

Case Officer Mrs June Pagdin

6/2016/1493/VAR
Address Thunderbridge Yard Bulls Lane Hatfield AL9 7BB
Proposal Variation of condition 1 to extend the temporary permission; condition 3 to 

permit eight caravans of which no more than five would be static caravans; 
condition 4 to vary the approved drawings; and condition 5 to vary the site 
development scheme; of planning permission S6/2011/0116/FP

Applicant Mr J Robb
Ward Welham Green & Hatfield South
Agent Mrs A Heine

Call-In/Objection 
from

Councillor Paul Zukowskyj, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

I would like to formally 'call in ' this applicaiton as it meets at least two of the 
key criteria for a call in, namely 1. The application is of an unusually 
sensitive nature as the current use of the site has led to significant adverse 
impact on neighbours amenity and that development beyond that permitted 
had occurred at the site. 2. The wider ramifications are the potential impact 

Page 44



of permitting this development may have on setting precedent for permitting 
neighbouring sites in the forthcoming local plan examination in public. There 
is also the precedent that would be set of permitting such developments, 
even for a limited period, in flood zones.

Call-In/Objection 
from

Sue Chudleigh, North Mymms Parish Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

NMPC OBJECT as this is clearly a new application. The name of the 
applicants is not the name to whom the extant  Permission was originally 
given.

The Government Planning Policy for traveller sites Policy E, in its 
introduction, states that making and decision taking should protect the Green 
Belt from inappropriate development - Item 4d and Item 16 state that 
inappropriate development is harmful to the Green Belt except in exceptional 
circumstances. None have been indicated. 

Item 4f - further states the local planning authority should aim to reduce the 
number of unauthorised developments and encampments.  This site has 
consistently exceeded the numbers stated in the original Permission and it is 
too small a site to be abused in this way.

Item 4k - states the local planning authority have to have due regard to the 
protection of local amenities and local environment.
There  have also been sanitary issues arising from the over-use of the site.
One or more travelling caravans have also been let to itinerant workers in 
contravention to the terms of the licence.  This has caused considerable 
problems to the neighbourhood.

Item 13 of the Planning Policy for traveller sites states the local planning 
authority should ensure that their policies:

a)  promote peaceful and integrated co-existence between the site and the 
local community 

f)  avoid placing undue pressure on local infrastructure and services 

g)  do not locate sites in areas at high risk of flooding, including functional 
floodplains, given the particular vulnerability of caravans

Policy E, Item 24 addresses local provision and it is the case that WHBC do 
not have a firm policy on Gypsy and Traveller sites in the Borough but there 
are existing sites in Welham Green – including a long term Showmans site 
which causes no trouble – however the Foxes Lane site also is also over 
used as the numbers of caravans exceeds the permitted numbers.
Item 27 states that if a local planning authority cannot demonstrate an up to 
date 5 year supply of  deliverable sites this should be a material 
consideration and in this case the existing sites result in  over supply in 
Welham Green therefore any expansion is unwarranted.

Page 45



Item 25 states that the local planning authority should very strictly limit 
traveller site development  in the Green Belt and further ….”sites in rural 
areas do not dominate the nearest settled  community.” Expansion of this 
site would cause stress on services and neighbours.

Item 16 Inappropriate development is harmful to the Green Belt and should 
not be approved, except in very special circumstances. Traveller sites 
(temporary or permanent) in the Green Belt are inappropriate development.  
Subject to the best interests of the child, personal circumstances and unmet 
need are unlikely to clearly outweigh harm to the Green Belt and any other 
harm so as to establish very special circumstances, none of which have 
been indicated in this case.

Item 24(a) The Local Planning Authority has to take into account the existing 
level of local provision and Welham Green currently has provision.  Indeed, 
even this is exceeded unlawfully – see report from Dennis Pennyfather, 
Licensing Technical Officer, dated 24 August 2016.

Item 25 This further states the Local Planning Authority should very strictly 
limit …. sites in rural areas should not dominate the nearest settled 
community.  Of late the activities at Thunderbridge Yard have caused 
extreme concern and disturbance to the neighbourhood.  Police and other 
authorities are aware of this, which seems to arise from the subletting of the 
excessive on-site accommodation to persons other than gypsies or 
travellers.

Footnote 9 States there is no presumption that a temporary grant of 
Planning Permission should be granted permanently, therefore North 
Mymms Parish Council consider, taking into account comments by Licensing 
Technical Officer that the site is not big enough, there are fire safety issues 
and this is a known flood plain with previous flooding issues, caravans on 
this Green Belt site are inappropriate development.

Case Officer Mrs June Pagdin

6/2017/0225/FULL
Address Welwyn Rugby Football Club Hobbs Way Welwyn Garden City AL8 6HX
Proposal Retention of 4x 15 metre high floodlight columns and lamps measuring a 

further 0.5 metres
Applicant Mr M Elliott
Ward Handside
Agent Mr M Elliott

Call-In/Objection 
from

Councillor Helen Bromley, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

I would like to call this in as the new floodlights are significantly higher and 
brighter than those which they replaced, by some 7 meters,  and they are 
also in different positions to the original lights.
This has caused significant harm to the residents and the general amenity of 

Page 46



the area.
The original application did not mention the floodlights being in different 
positions.
This is impacting on the conservation and EMS area.
There is substantial visual intrusion day and night.
At night, the light spill is far worse than previously, despite the rugby club 
saying it would be less. This is not the case.
The club also seems to be contravening the permission given as to when 
they may be used.

Case Officer Mr Tom Gabriel

6/2017/0513/FULL
Address 5 West View Hatfield AL10 0PJ
Proposal Change of use from sui-generis (Large HMO for up to 8 people) to a large 

HMO for up to 7 people and 6 self-contained units for up to 12 people and 
erection of laundry area and awning over patio

Applicant Ms D Law
Ward Hatfield Cent.
Agent Ms D Law

Call-In/Objection 
from

Carrie Lloyd, Hatfield Town Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

The Committee objected to this application due to the fact the Hatfield Article 
4 Direction desperately needs reviewing and this has been recognised by 
the LPA.  Until such time that this has been carried out and bearing in mind 
that the overall concentration of HMOs in Hatfield Town Council's area 
needs to be reduced, no further HMOs should be permitted within the 
boundaries of Hatfield Town Council's area hence forth.  This particular 
application lacks sufficient communal space and we suggest fails to meet 
the legal requirements for HMO’s.

Case Officer Mr Mark Peacock

6/2017/0606/MAJ
Address 1-9 Town Centre Hatfield AL10 0JZ
Proposal Erection of 2 buildings to provide 1,194m2 (GEA) commercial floor space 

(A1 & A3), 70 flats (15 x 1 bedroom, 7 x 2 bedroom, three person and 48 x 2 
bedroom, four person) with associated car/bicycle parking, plant and refuse 
storage and including the improvement of public realm, following the 
demolition of existing buildings.

Applicant Mr P Brimley
Ward Hatfield Cent.
Agent Mr P Wellings-Longmore

Call-In/Objection 
from

Carrie Lloyd, Hatfield Town Council

Page 47



Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

Object: The Town Council is concerned at the impact of parking from new 
residential units on the retail parking spaces available.  The Council has 
repeatedly asked that design of new structures in the Town is sympathetic to 
existing Hatfield designs but again we see another architect imposing their 
design on our Town making it an uncoordinated mismatch of urban design 
from different decades with no empathy to the historic nature of the Town.  
Members are concerned at the impact of the level 7 building on the Grade 1 
listed building of Hatfield House.  Members consider that a community 
facility needs to be included within the design.

Case Officer Mr Mark Peacock

6/2017/1575/HOUSE
Address 6 Errington Close Hatfield AL10 9AU
Proposal Conversion of garage to habitable room with installation of window to rear 

elevation
Applicant Helene
Ward Hatfield Villages
Agent Mr A Feasey

Call-In/Objection 
from

Carrie Lloyd, Hatfield Town Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

14/08/2017 14:49 - Members object to the loss of a parking space in this part 
of Hatfield where parking is at a premium.

Further the Hatfield Article 4 Direction desperately needs reviewing and this 
has been recognised by the LPA.  Until such time that this has been carried 
out and bearing in mind that the overall concentration of HMOs in Hatfield 
Town Council's area needs to be reduced, no further HMOs should be 
permitted within the boundaries of Hatfield Town Council's area hence forth, 
permitting this garage to be converted will further exacerbate the increase in 
student/HMO accommodation in Hatfield. 

Case Officer Mr David Elmore

6/2018/0719/FULL
Address Wood Green Timber Company, Coopers Lane, Northaw, Potters, Bar EN6 

4NE
Proposal Retention of existing racking structures with a reduced height of 4 metres 

and omitting the roofs
Applicant Mr J Silvester
Ward Northaw and Cuffley
Agent  DLA Town Planning Ltd

Call-In/Objection 
from

Jason Grocock, Northaw & Cuffley Parish Council

Page 48



Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

4/04/2018 16:34 - The Inspector who refused the previous appeal ruled that 
there is:-
Harm to the Green Belt from introducing an industrial structure
The volume of the racking now proposed is a massive 2566.7 cubic metres
Northaw is not an industrial area
Loss of amenity to neighbours
No very special circumstances
Should WHBC approve this application, we would expect industry standard 
conditions to be applied e.g. hours of operating, no parking on the B156, 
size of lorries etc.  
However we would regret this application being approved as it would set a 
precedent for nearby landowners

Case Officer Mr David Elmore
6/2018/0931/HOUSE

Address Sawmill Cottage Waterend Lane Ayot St Peter Welwyn AL6 9BB
Proposal Erection of a first floor side extension to include three dormer windows

Applicant Mrs C Hunt
Ward Welwyn West
Agent Mrs C Hunt

Call-In/Objection 
from

Councillor Tony Kingsbury, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

27/06/2018 21:33 - I would like to call in this application if the officer is 
minded to refuse it, on the basis that the development is in keeping with, and 
improves the character of the existing building. The property is set back from 
a quiet road and the development does not in my opinion impact on the 
openness of the green belt. The additional space also supports growth of an 
existing business at the property, supporting the local economy.

Case Officer Ms Clare Howe

6/2018/1117/FULL
Address 13A Station Road Welham Green Hatfield AL9 7PN
Proposal Erection of a 3-bedroom chalet style bungalow

Applicant Mr Makowski
Ward Welham Green & Hatfield South
Agent Mr R Robins

Call-In/Objection 
from

Councillor Paul Zukowskyj, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

I would like to call in this application as the location is really prominent in the 
village so raises sensitive planning issues as it would visually impact the 
central village green. There is also the issue around the scale of 
development where the internal footprint of the dwelling is more than 50% of 
the curtilage area, which is atypical of the area.

Page 49



Case Officer Ms Lucy Hale

6/2018/1198/FULL
Address Vixendell Lane End Hatfield AL10 9AG
Proposal Conversion of existing dwelling and change of use from residential (C3) to a 

Large HMO comprising of 9 en-suite rooms and associated amenities
Applicant Mr Patel
Ward Hatfield South West
Agent Mr C Shah

Call-In/Objection 
from

Councillor James Broach, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

I would like to call this application in on the following grounds please:

• I am concerned that several of the bedrooms, especially number 4, are 
rather small. I would query whether the applicant has provided sufficient 
amenity to the potential occupants of this property. I note that application ref 
6/2018/0514/FULL, a not dissimilar proposal, was recently refused on similar 
grounds, so I would be keen to see if similar logic could be applied here. 

• On a similar tack, the amount of work and storage space shown on the 
kitchen doesn’t look sufficient for the potential number of residents of this 
house, bearing in mind that as the rooms are double rooms, there could be 
more than one person per bedroom. This amenity space could be awfully 
cramped at peak times. Given that bedroom 4 is right next to this space, the 
occupant of that room is likely to be at risk of experiencing high levels of 
noise due to potentially large numbers of people using what little space has 
been provided at a variety of times of day and night 

• I note that bedrooms 6 & 9 on the first floor share an en suite, but have 
separate entrances. This poses quite serious questions around the privacy 
provided to the occupants of the two rooms and would appear to be 
completely unsuitable. 

• I note that only 5 off street parking spaces are shown on the plans. This 
seems incredibly insufficient, and I would query whether this provision is 
sufficient for this proposal, or indeed meets the minimum standards 
stipulated by this council and/or the NPPF?

• To convert a house to hold this many people would be significantly out of 
keeping with the neighbouring area. Whilst there do not appear to be any 
major structural changes other than the creation of the bin and bike sheds, I 
feel that setting a precedent to house this many people under one roof could 
set off a significant chain of events in this area of Hatfield, which already has 
an exceptionally high density of HMOs. To that effect, I would ask that the 
Article 4 directive is closely looked at in this case, as there will likely be a 
high number of HMOs in this area. 

Page 50



As ever I am happy for this to be refused under delegated powers if that is 
what the team decides to recommend. 

Case Officer Mr William Myers

6/2018/1267/VAR
Address 8-18 (inclusive) Stanborough Close Welwyn Garden City AL8 6XB
Proposal Variation of condition 10 (tenancy restriction) on planning permission 

N6/1994/0338/FP, dated 29/09/1994
Applicant Ms T Sinclair
Ward Handside
Agent Mr A Woolcott

Call-In/Objection 
from

Councillor Helen Bromley, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

I understand that an application for a variation to several of the bungalows 
has now been submitted.
I have called in previous applications in this Close and would like to call in 
this latest one too.

This would be a fundamental change to the use of these dwellings which 
needs to be considered by the DMC, in order that all the implications of any 
decision, may be fully discussed and understood by all.
Kind Regards 
Helen

Case Officer Ms Louise Sahlke

6/2018/1323/FULL
Address Garages and land adjacent to flats 37- 48 Lambs Close Cuffley EN6 4HD
Proposal Erection of a 2-bedroom flat above existing flats

Applicant Ludgate Property Developments Ltd
Ward Northaw and Cuffley
Agent Mr D Padalino

Call-In/Objection 
from

Jason Grocock, Northaw & Cuffley Parish Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

20/06/2018 14:21 - MAJOR OBJECTION – Objection on the grounds of 
previous objections (6/11/17) – when the application was refused….
The Parish Council has a major objection to this application on the following 
basis:-
Overdevelopment of the site.  Creates overlooking on neighbouring 
properties.  Inappropriate development of the site.  Inadequate car parking.  
Similar scheme previously rejected (6/2017/1079/FULL)

Page 51



Case Officer Mr William Myers

6/2018/1340/HOUSE
Address 17B Station Road Welham Green Hatfield AL9 7PL
Proposal Installation of front window to facilitate partial garage conversion to form a 

study
Applicant Ms Pearce
Ward Welham Green & Hatfield South
Agent Mr Young

Call-In/Objection 
from

Sue Chudleigh, North Mymms Parish Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

North Mymms Parish Council have a MAJOR OBJECTION to this 
application. The loss of parking space is significant as the proposal would 
not comply with WHBC’s current parking standards. Station Road is a busy 
thoroughfare and no extra parking space is available on roads nearby and 
double yellow lines were recently put around the corners of Lydia Mews. For 
a three-bedroom house one car parking space is totally inadequate. It is 
nonsense to construct a garage that is unsuitable for a car and the need to 
increase the size of the garage was noted at planning stage.

Case Officer Mr Richard Sakyi

6/2018/1354/OUTLINE
Address Land South of Cromer Hyde Welwyn Garden City
Proposal Outline permission for the change of use of land to airfield with runway and 

support facilities and erection of a clubhouse with all matters except access 
and layout reserved

Applicant Mr C Fitch
Ward Hatfield Villages
Agent Mr A Bardett

Call-In/Objection 
from

Councillor Duncan Bell, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

As one of the ward councillors for Hatfield Villages, I would like to 
conditionally call-in the above application.

This call-in is conditional, in that I would only request it's consideration by 
the Development Management Committee in the event that Planning 
Department recommend approval of the application.

My grounds for calling this application in are:

  *   The flying training circuit indicated within the Feasibility Study raises 
potential environmental (noise) concerns impacting many properties in 
Hatfield Garden Village and Salisbury Village, as well as properties within 
the proposed Local Plan sites of HAT1 and Symondshyde Village.  This 

Page 52



potential environmental impact goes well beyond the addresses contacted 
as immediate neighbours.

  *   The Feasibility Study appears to envisage that construction of the airfield 
could be at least partly funded by S106 monies generated from the 
Panshanger site housing development.  In reality, S106 or CIL commitments 
generated from Local Plan developments will be finite, and there will be 
many competing claims upon their deployment.  They will need to be 
deployed where the infrastructure needs are greatest, as assessed by the 
public authorities involved.  The idea that these essentially public resources 
could be pre-empted for use on a private proposal for a new airfield seems 
questionable at best.

Given the above, I believe that this application is of sufficient interest to merit 
consideration by Development Management Committee if the Planning 
Officer recommends approval.

I have copied the three town councillors for the ward, as Hatfield Town 
Council is one of the consultees.

I will almost certainly submit a more detailed representation in a few days 
time.

Thanks for accepting this call-in.
Kind Regards,
Duncan Bell.

Case Officer Mr Mark Peacock
Address Land South of Cromer Hyde Welwyn Garden City
Proposal Outline permission for the change of use of land to airfield with runway and 

support facilities and erection of a clubhouse with all matters except access 
and layout reserved

Applicant Mr C Fitch
Ward Hatfield Villages
Agent Mr A Bardett

Call-In/Objection 
from

Carrie Lloyd, Hatfield Town Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

22/06/2018 15:47 - The application is in the Green Belt and no special 
circumstances have been shown to divert from Green Belt Policy.  Members 
are concerned at the effect of noise and air pollution on the quality of life on 
residents of Salisbury Village and the Hatfield Garden Village.  HAT1 & 
HAT2 (if built) will be very close to this application site causing further 
distress to residential development.  50 cars will see a great increase in 
vehicular movements in this area.

Case Officer Mr Mark Peacock

Page 53



6/2018/1635/OUTLINE
Address Historic De Havilland Grass Runway

Ellenbrook fields Hatfield Buisness park
Hatfield Herts

Proposal Outline permission for the change of use of land to airfield with runway and 
support facilities

Applicant Mr C Fitch
Ward Hatfield Villages
Agent Mr C Fitch

Call-In/Objection 
from

Councillor Duncan Bell, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

i would like to conditionally call in the above planning application, which 
appears to be for an airfield within Ellenbrook Fields.

This will, as for 6/2018/1354, be a conditional call-in, in that it will only need 
to come to DMC if Planning Department recommend approval.

My ground for calling this in are:

• There is a considerable potential for noise nuisance over a wide area of 
Ellenbrook, Salisbury Village, and Hatfield Garden Village.
• Just as for application 6/2018/1354, the applicant seems to envisage that 
S106 monies can be used to help finance the project.  S106 monies will be a 
scarce resource in the context of the WHBC Local Plan.  They are 
essentially public resources infrastructure needs associated with Local Plan 
development.  This should not include private flying facilities.
• There is no airfield at Panshanger to "replace".
• My understanding is that there is an entirely separate S106 commitment 
associated with a 2017 mineral extraction application to restore Ellenbrook 
Fields as a country park.  It is unclear how this application would fit with this 
prior commitment. 

Case Officer Mr Mark Peacock

Page 54



Appendix 2 - All other applications not comprising call-ins or objections

ward description
6/2017/0606/MAJ

Address 1-9 Town Centre Hatfield AL10 0JZ
Proposal Erection of 2 buildings to provide 1,194m2 (GEA) commercial floor space (A1 

& A3), 70 flats (15 x 1 bedroom, 7 x 2 bedroom, three person and 48 x 2 
bedroom, four person) with associated car/bicycle parking, plant and refuse 
storage and including the improvement of public realm, following the 
demolition of existing buildings.

Applicant Mr P Brimley
Ward Hatfield Cent.
Agent Mr P Wellings-Longmore

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

The applicant is Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council and the proposal is major 
development which should be considered by the Committee.

Case Officer Mr Mark Peacock

S6/2015/1342/PP
Address Land to the north east of King George V Playing Fields, Northaw Road East, 

Cuffley, Hertfordshire, EN6 4RD
Proposal Outline planning application for residential development of up to 121 

dwellings, associated infrastructure and a change of use from agricultural 
land to an extension of the King George V playing field.  All matters reserved 
except for new vehicular access to serve the site, the provision of surface 
water discharge points and the levels of development platforms

Applicant Lands Improvement Holdings Landmatch
Ward Northaw and Cuffley
Agent Mr M Smith

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

The application is of a scale, sensitive nature or is controversial and officer’s 
consider that in accordance with the Council’s constitution, it should be 
determined by the Development Management Committee.   Additionally, the 
application is a departure from the provisions of the appropriate development 
plan, other policy guidance or supplementary planning guidance.

Case Officer Mr Mark Peacock

Page 55



Page 56



Part I
Main Author: Chris Carter

Executive Member: Cllr S. Boulton

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE – 19 JULY 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE)
 

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT

APRIL – JUNE 2018

(All wards)

1 Introduction

1.1 This report relates to the performance of the Development Management Service 
over the three month period April to June 2018.  

1.2 Members should note that, whilst this quarter is traditionally considered to be 
quarter one of the financial year, the planning department software considers this 
to be quarter two, as with the calendar year. Therefore Members will see that 
some of the graphs reflect both of these approaches.

2 Recommendation

2.1 That Members note the content of this report. 

3 Application Numbers

3.1 The graphs below show the number of applications that have been received 
during the final two quarters of 2017 and the first two quarter of 2018.  In 
summary, 750 in quarter 3 and 733 in quarter 4. In quarter 1 of 2018 825 
applications were received, and this increase has continued in quarter 2 with 849 
applications received.

Page 57

Agenda Item 11



Major applications are those with 10 or more dwellings, sites of 1 hectare or 
more, or provision of 1,000m² new floor area or more.

Minor applications include (but are not limited to) up to 9 dwellings, gypsy and 
traveller sites and commercial proposals not falling within the major category.

Others include (but are not limited to) householder, advertisements and listed 
building applications. 

The ‘non countable’ category are those applications which are not reported to the 
Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG).  Such applications 
include, but are not limited to: prior approvals, discharge of conditions, etc.  

Estate Management applications are not planning applications and therefore are 
subject to different policies and regulations compared to planning.  However, 
they comprise a significant amount of the department’s work and have therefore 
been reported separately for information.  These applications include proposals 
for both built development and for landscaping (tree/hedge removal) proposals.  

3.2 From the graph above, it can be seen that Estate Management, Non-countable 
and Householders remain the greatest number submitted. As with the previous 
quarter there has been a further notable overall increase in the number of 
applications received in the last quarter and individual officer workloads have 
therefore remained higher than is desired. 

4 Performance

Applications

4.1 Government (MHCLG) monitor planning authorities on their speed of making 
decisions in relation to major and non-major applications.  The target at national 
level is to determine 60% of major applications within the statutory period of 13 
weeks or subject to the agreement of a time extension over a rolling two-year 
period.  In addition, the Council has a local performance indicator for majors of 
70%.  For non-majors, it is 70% over a two-year period.  For authorities who 
under-perform against this target, they will be classed as ‘poorly performing’ and 
applications for major development may be made by developers directly to the 
Planning Inspectorate should the target be missed.  The Council would not 
receive the fees for these but would be expected to deal with all of the associated 
administration.  

The following graph relates to the percentage of planning applications 
determined within set timescales. 

Page 58



100 100 100 100

73

89

74

87

91 88 88
93

Quarter to end of 
Sept 17

Quarter to end of 
Dec 17

Quarter to end of 
Mar 18

Quarter to end of 
Jun 18

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

110

Majors Minors Others

Speed of Decisions

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge

4.2 Over the last quarter performance for majors has been maintained at 100%. 
Performance for others has improved to 98% with performance for minors 
jumping back up to 87%. Decisions are still being made within both statutory and 
local targets.

These targets have, however, been achieved due to seeking time extensions for 
dealing with the applications beyond their statutory time period from applicants.  
Time extensions might be sought for a variety of reasons but might include 
seeking negotiations, complex and/or controversial proposals and items 
presented to Committee.  Time extensions do not go against the authority in 
terms of speed of decision making when reporting to the government.  The graph 
below shows the total number of applications determined each month in blue and 
alongside this in yellow are the number of applications where time extensions 
have been sought on those determined.  Seeking time extensions means that 
case officers workloads overall increase which makes dealing with newer 
applications on time more difficult.  Approximately 25% of all applications 
determined are subject to a time extension.  On average, each full time 
equivalent case officer will be dealing with 379 applications per annum. 

4.3 Of the decisions reported above, the following graphs show the number of 
decisions that were granted, refused, split (i.e. part granted and part refused) and 

Page 59



withdrawn across the major, minor and other categories.  All three graphs 
demonstrate that the majority of applications are granted. Withdrawals are not 
reported as part of our overall performance to government but still will have 
involved a significant amount of work by the case officers. These applications are 
frequently resubmitted often as a ‘free go’.

Page 60



Landscaping

4.4 As in the previous quarter, the performance of the landscaping team is being 
reported to enable Members to understand some of the work undertaken by 
landscape and tree officers which is not already reported to other committees 
such as the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

4.5 The landscaping team is responsible for dealing with applications relating to Tree 
Preservation Orders (TPOs), applications for works to trees in Conservation 
Areas and Estate Management applications where works are proposed to trees 
or hedges.  They are also involved in masterplanning for strategic, and other 
large, sites to advise on landscaping and planting plans.

4.6 In the region of 200 applications per annum are received which are Estate 
Management and 300 TPO and works to trees in Conservation Area applications.  
Applications for works to trees in Conservation Areas require the Council to 
determine whether or not the tree should be protected by a TPO.  Decisions must 
be made within 6-weeks and the Order issued within this timescale.  If a decision 
is not made on the first day of the 7th week, the applicant may undertake the 
works that they were seeking consent for.  

4.7 The following graphs show the number of TPO and conservation area 
applications determined each month and whether they were determined within 
the statutory timescales. This shows little consistency with the number of 
applications received each month making resourcing more difficult and the 
number of decisions made in time are sensitive to changes in officer capacity. It 
is noted that 

Page 61



4.8 The graph below shows the number of decisions made on TPO’s and Trees in 
Conservation Areas since the beginning of the year. The Landscape Officer tries 
to negotiate acceptable schemes, hence a high approval or no objection rate.

Page 62



 

4.9 The graph above shows the number of applications for works to trees within the 
Estate Management area. The overall number of new applications did drop a little 
in April and May, but has returned to the long term average in June.

4.10 In addition to dealing with applications, Members will be aware from reports 
presented to Committee that the landscaping officer will comment on proposals 
that might have an impact on either existing landscaping or will provide an 
opinion on proposed landscaping.  The following graphs show the average 
number of consultations per month is approximately 30, with a peak over 40 in 
the most recent month of June.

Page 63



Appeals

4.11 The chart below shows the number of applications and enforcement notices that 
have been allowed, allowed with conditions, dismissed, split decisions (part 
allowed and part refused) and withdrawn at appeal.  This quarter has seen an 
increase in the number of decisions compared to the previous, from 11 to 16. 
Whilst, over the longer term, there continues to be a trend towards appeals being 
allowed or allowed with conditions by the Planning Inspectorate, the most recent 
quarter seems to have marginally reversed this trend resulting in 31% allowed, 
an improvement from the 36% in the previous quarter.  This does however mean 
that the Council has therefore failed to meet its local target for this quarter, albeit 
by a much smaller margin than in the previous quarter.

4.12 As well as the Government monitoring authorities in relation to performance for 
determining applications, it also monitors quality in relation to the number of 
major and non-major applications overturned (i.e. allowed) at appeal.  The 
threshold is for fewer than 10% of major applications overturned at appeal over a 
rolling two-year period.  For authorities who exceed this target, they will be 
classed as ‘poorly performing’ and applications for major developments may be 
made by developers directly to the Planning Inspectorate.  The last major 
application overturned at appeal was over two years ago and therefore the 
Council is meeting the Government’s target.   It is worth highlighting that very few 
major applications have historically been refused by the Council and thus very 
few can be appealed.  

4.13 As of 1 April this year the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local 
Government (MHCLG) has implemented a threshold for quality of decisions for 
non-major applications at 10%.  For clarification, this is 10% of all non-major (i.e. 
minor and others) decisions refused by the Council and subsequently overturned 
at appeal over a rolling two-year period.  The statistics collated by MHCLG have 
been published and relate to the two year period between April 2015-March 
2017. These figures show that a total of 62 appeals have been determined of 
which 18 were allowed.  Over the same time period 1,677 applications have been 
determined.  The percentage is therefore 1.1%.  The Council is therefore 
significantly within government’s target and not at risk of being classed as poorly 
performing. 

Page 64



5 Enforcement

Number of cases received

5.1 Enforcement continues to be very busy. However there has been a slight decline 
in the number of new cases being registered in the last quarter. 

5.2 As with previous quarters, a lot of cases reported are those considered as having 
a less serious impact upon amenity, shown in red.  

Notices Issued

5.3 The chart below shows the number of notices issued.  The issuing of an 
enforcement notice is the last resort for the Council.  Government guidance 
requires local planning authorities to try to negotiate with a contravener to find 
alternative means by which an unacceptable development may be made 
acceptable.  A significant amount of time is spent by the enforcement officers in 
negotiation.

Page 65



5.4 Since the last performance report was presented to Committee, the enforcement 
team have continued to be busy with, amongst other matters, the issuing of five 
Planning Contravention Notices.  Planning Contravention Notices are used to 
establish the use of a site and to find out ownership and other details.  They may 
only be used by the Council when a breach of planning control is suspected.  
They cannot be used as a ‘fishing exercise’.

5.5 There are currently 587 outstanding enforcement cases (both planning and 
Estate Management), some of which are awaiting prosecution, notices to be 
served or, in the case of estate management, for arbitration.  Others are being 
investigated with the aim to find an acceptable resolution for all parties.  The next 
report providing an update on enforcement action taken (i.e. notices issued) will 
be presented to the September Development Management Committee (DMC 
meeting as a Part II (confidential) item.

6 Updates 

6.1 Since the last report, there have been further changes within the Planning team. 
Bright Owusu (Principal Enforcement Officer) has left the authority. A 
replacement has been appointed, but is not expected to start with the Council 
until September. Recent advertisements for a Principal Development 
Management Officer and Career Grade Development Management Officer were 
unsuccessful, and so consideration is being given to further recruitment 
exercises.

7 Conclusion

7.1 All areas continue to be busy, however performance has seen an overall 
improvement compared to the previous quarter.  Recruitment remains very 
challenging but efforts continue to try and recruit high quality permanent staff.

Author: Chris Carter (Development Management Service Manager)
Date:  4 July 2018

Page 66



Part I
Main author: Cettina Robinson
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen 
Boulton

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE – 19 JULY 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE)

SECTION 106 PLANNING OBLIGATIONS REPORT

1 Executive Summary

1.1 Planning obligations are an effective tool to secure the necessary infrastructure 
and services required as a result of development.  They also ensure that the 
negative impacts of a development can be adequately mitigated. For example 
increasing/improving public transport provision, increasing school capacity, 
enhancing open spaces, requiring that a given portion of housing is affordable, 
etc.  It is important to note that they cannot be used to mitigate the impact of any 
shortfall in existing infrastructure.

1.2 Both Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council and Hertfordshire County Council have 
produced guidance fully detailing the planning obligations which can be sought. 
This is also useful in assisting applicants and developers to calculate their 
potential Section 106 costs prior to making a planning application. These 
documents titled WHBC Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) 2012 and Herts CC Planning Obligations Guidance - Toolkit for 
Hertfordshire can be viewed at: http://www.welhat.gov.uk/planningguidance. 

1.3 The purpose of planning obligations are to make development acceptable that 
would otherwise be unacceptable in planning terms.  The National Panning 
Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out in paragraph 204 that planning obligations 
can only be sought where they meet the following tests:

 necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
 directly related to the development; and
 fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

2 Recommendations

2.1 That Members note the contents of this annual report which relates to a) how the 
Borough Council collects and spends s106 monies, and b) details monies still to 
be spent.  

2.2 To advise Ward Members that s106 contributions can be sought from future 
developments above 10 residential units and for Members to consider this in 
identifying potentially related infrastructure requirements. Contributions can also 
be sought from developments including employment or retail uses.

2.3 Furthermore, for Members to offer comments on how they would like the Council 
to secure and spend Section 106 and Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

Page 67

Agenda Item 12

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/planningguidance


contributions in the future. 

3 Explanation

3.1 The Borough Council collects and spends contributions towards community 
facilities, public art, green spaces, indoor and outdoor sports facilities, play areas 
and equipment, parking and on-site waste and recycling provision.  These funds 
are detailed by Ward in Appendix 1 (which shows an up to date breakdown of 
potential s106 monies, the sums collected so far (£3,859,022), spent so far 
(£1,783,229) and the remaining funds yet to be spent (£2,071,175).  
Hertfordshire County Council as the local highway and education authority 
spends contributions towards education, highways, transport and rights of way.  
Details of these monies currently held and recently spent are detailed in 
Appendices 2 and 3.

3.2 The Borough Council has, within the last financial year, executed thirteen s106’s 
and Variation/Supplemental Agreements, and accepted four Unilateral 
Undertakings all totalling a potential value of £4,280,510 (includes contributions 
due to the County Council).  Of these Agreements a total of 82 affordable 
housing units were secured.

3.3 In the last financial year the Council received a total of £90,370 in s106 
contributions and £99,147 was spent (further details provided at 3.10).

3.4 The Council prepared and consulted on its CIL Preliminary Draft Charging 
Schedule last year.  The present intention is to prepare the Draft Charging 
Schedule and consult later in the year in line with the progression of the Local 
Plan. It is then hoped the Council will be in a position to adopt the Local Plan in 
spring 2019 with adoption of CIL shortly after.

3.5 One of the Local Plan policies proposed is to lower the threshold triggering the 
requirement for affordable housing to 11 units.  The current policy requires 30% 
affordable housing on proposed developments of 25 units and above. The 
Submitted Local Plan proposes targets of 25% for Hatfield, 30% for Welwyn 
Garden City and 35% for village and rural locations.

3.6 The Committee may recall the Housing White Paper published in February 2017 
set out the Government’s intention to improve the current approach to planning 
obligations. It also included an independent CIL review. A consultation on a 
preferred approach ended in May, therefore we await the results.  Any changes 
to CIL will be introduced on a transitional basis and full implementation will be 
expected by 2020.

3.7 Viability

3.7.1 Financial viability is often a consideration in the assessment of planning 
applications. Paragraph 173 of the National Planning policy Framework 
(NPPF) states the following:

“Pursuing sustainable development requires careful attention to 
viability and costs in plan-making and decision-taking. Plans should 
be deliverable. Therefore, the sites and scale of development 
identified in the plan should not be subject to such a scale of 
obligations and policy burdens that their ability to be developed 

Page 68



viably is threatened. To ensure viability, the costs of any 
requirements likely to be applied to development, such as 
requirements for affordable housing, standards, infrastructure 
contributions or other requirements should, when taking account of 
the normal cost of development and mitigation, provide competitive 
returns to a willing land owner and willing developer to enable the 
development to be deliverable”.

3.7.2 This Council has continued to receive requests from applicants for the 
viability of their schemes to be considered as part of the planning process. 
In these cases the Council has had to consider the appropriate amount of 
planning obligations and/or affordable housing being sought, based on the 
evidence that has been provided and following independent examination. 
Consideration of viability is an approach which is advocated by national 
and local planning policy and guidance.

3.7.3 In scenarios where a developer does identify a viability challenge for a 
proposal, the Council will normally request the submission of a viability 
assessment in order to test the evidence submitted. This assessment will 
then be considered by the Council, or consultants acting on the Council’s 
behalf, with the costs of this work being covered by the developer. This 
process is set out in detail in the Council’s Planning Obligations 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD).

3.7.4 The outcomes of a viability appraisal can be varied and may include a 
negotiated agreement on the level of financial contributions or affordable 
housing. If the Council and developer cannot agree the Council may 
refuse planning permission. In such cases the viability arguments may be 
tested further at an appeal.

3.8 Reasons why planning obligations may not be sought

3.8.1 There are circumstances where planning obligations may not be sought, 
even though it would appear that some impact on existing infrastructure 
provision would be likely to occur. There can be a number of different 
reasons for this. For example, office to residential developments (applied 
for under Prior Approval) are exempt from planning obligations, or a lack 
of evidence to demonstrate need or indeed the pooling restrictions (CIL 
Regulation 123 (3)) which limits the pooling of a maximum of five 
obligations towards a specific infrastructure project or type including 
education and transport. This affects all s106s entered into since 6 April 
2010.  It is important to understand that if the Council, as Local Planning 
Authority, is not able to demonstrate a robust case for seeking planning 
obligations/contributions, then it should not do so. In this regard, the 
Council is reliant on the quality of information and justification that 
emerges from the various service providers.  

Page 69



Photo 1: Improved Hatfield Indoor Bowls Club 
(project funded by S106 contributions)

3.9 The role of Town and Parish Councils 

3.9.1 Town and Parish Councils have an important role to play in this process, 
in particular by being able to identify local deliverable schemes. It is 
important that the Borough Council works with the Town and Parish 
Councils to help them to provide robust information about projects in their 
localities. Information is required on the nature of the project, what the 
estimated overall cost will be, whether any other funding streams will also 
be used and the timeframe for the delivery of that project. Information such 
as this then forms the justification for seeking contributions to those 
schemes. It is anticipated that this will predominantly relate to projects 
dealing with play space, green space, sports and recreation facilities.  The 
Development Management Team continues to engage with Town and 
Parish Councils on planning applications with potential s106 agreements.

3.9.2 Town and Parish Councils should also recognise that providing this 
information is important even in circumstances where they do not support 
a particular application which is being considered by the Local Planning 
Authority.  Whilst an application may not be supported at the local level, it 
may still be granted by the Borough Council or on appeal. In these 
circumstances, it is important that the local community is still able to 
realise some benefit from a development, even if it was not initially 
supported.  It should also be noted that funding for projects would only 
come forward if and when development is implemented, and it may be 
years until some payments are triggered depending on the size of the 
development.

3.9.3 Officers continue to be available to engage with Town and Parish Councils 
to improve awareness of the development management and s106 
process.

Page 70



 
Photo 2:  New see-saw at Gobions Play Area

(project funded by S106 contributions)

3.10 Income and Expenditure

3.10.1 £90,370 was received in the last financial year.  This sum totals the 
contributions received from nine implemented developments.  The largest 
sum received was £12,584 which was for the first parking survey to be 
carried out around the development next to the Porsche garage in the 
Hatfield Business Park. The smaller sums were all for local green spaces, 
play facilities and waste and recycling provision at specific developments. 

3.10.2 £99,147 was spent in the last financial year, some of the projects funded 
were; 
 £42,542 towards replacing the old asbestos ceiling and installing new 

energy saving LED lights to ensure continued and enhanced use of the 
Hatfield Bowls Club (funded from the Hatfield Community Sports Fund 
secured by the Angerland Common Park & Ride development) (photo  
1 shown above)

 £4,758 towards a new see-saw at the Gobions Play Area (photo 2 
shown above)

 £5,500 towards adult exercise equipment at the Gobions Open Space 
(photo 3 shown below)

 £6,000 for a new disabled toilet, shower and changing space at the 
Welwyn Garden City Football Club

 £13,580 for providing waste and recycling bins to three new residential 
developments

3.10.3 £1,500 with interest was returned to three developers.  These were 
surplus sums of waste and recycling monies held (due to VAT mistakenly 
added at the time of negotiating the Agreement and then indexation 
applied at the time of collecting the sums (i.e. commencement of 
development) however the costs of bins had not increased in the time the 
sum was collected and the bins being provided to the new residents 
therefore producing an excess of funds).

Page 71



Photo 3:  Adult exercise equipment at Gobions Open Space
(project funded by S106 contributions)

4 Legal Implications

4.1 There are no legal implications associated with this report other than those that 
fall under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the CIL Regulations 
2010.  

5 Financial Implications

5.1 This report is financial in nature and the implications are discussed in the main 
body of the report at Section 3.   

6 Risk Management Implications

6.1 The Council should be aware of how much unspent Section 106 funds it holds. 
This Council should work closely with Herts County Council to identify and 
progress highway, education and other projects for which they are responsible.  
Funds also need to be spent within certain deadlines stipulated by each 
agreement (most commonly 10 years).  Any unspent funds would need to be 
returned to the developers.  The Council also needs to closely monitor proposed 
financial obligations in adherence with the pooling restriction (as detailed in para 
3.8.1 above).

7 Security and Terrorism Implications

7.1 There are no specific security/terrorism implications associated with this report. 

8 Procurement Implications

8.1 There are no specific procurement implications associated with this report. 

9 Climate Change Implications

9.1 There are no specific climate change implications associated with this report. 

10 Policy Implications

Page 72



10.1 This report presents no specific policy implications. There is reference to 
upcoming changes to legislation and to a revised NPPF (due to be published this 
month) which will be picked up in future monitoring reports and with reference to 
the Council’s planning policy framework. 

11 Link to Corporate Priorities

The subject of this report is linked to the Business Plan which sets out the 
Council’s vision, priorities and objectives to 2021. 
Its five priorities are: 

 our community (which covers public health, sport, leisure, culture)
 our environment (which covers clean streets, recycling, green spaces, 

parking)
 our housing (which covers planning, affordable housing and social 

housing)
 our economy (which covers businesses and town centres); and 
 our council (which covers value for money, equality, fairness and 

customers

12 Equalities and Diversity

12.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out in connection with 
the recommendations in this report, as there are no impacts on protected 
characteristics nor does the report propose changes to the existing service 
related polices. Notwithstanding these the following matters should be noted:

 An equalities impact assessment has been carried out for the Council’s 
Planning Obligations SPD.

 Equalities and Diversity matters will have been considered for all 106 
planning applications. Many of the areas where S106 funding has been 
identified will have benefits for the community and have a positive impact on 
equalities implications. 

Name of main author: Cettina Robinson 
Title: Planning Obligations and CIL Officer

Appendices:
Appendix 1 – Borough Council Funds by Ward as at 20 June 2018
Appendix 2 – Herts County Council Traffic Light Report (Property) as at 28 Feb 2018 
Appendix 3 – Herts County Council Traffic Light Report (Environment) as at 28 Feb 
2018

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

S106 Report Appendix 1 - up to date breakdown of contributions 
                                           secured, collected, spent and remaining

Brookmans Park & Little Heath Potential Collected Spent Available
S106 Green Space £0 £2,469 £2,469 £0
S106 Greenspace non WHBC £0 £1,282 £0 £1,282
S106 Misc. Financial Appraisal Costs £0 £646 £646 £0
S106 Play Area Parish Council £0 £3,362 £3,362 £0
S106 Play Facilities Parish Council £0 £8,946 £6,896 £2,050
S106 Waste and Recycling £0 £4,604 £4,604 £0

TOTALS £0 £21,310 £17,977 £3,333

Haldens Potential Collected Spent Available
£0 £0 £0 £0

Handside Potential Collected Spent Available
S106 Play Equipment WHBC £0 £52,209 £52,209 £0
S106 Green Space £0 £47,000 £10,141 £36,859

TOTALS £0 £99,209 £62,351 £36,859

Hatfield Central Potential Collected Spent Available
S106 Community Facilities - Shopmobility £3,000 £0 £0 £0
S106 Green Space £0 £33,946 £33,946 £0

TOTALS £3,000 £33,946 £33,946 £0

Hatfield East Potential Collected Spent Available
S106 Green Space £0 £25,905 £18,000 £7,905
S106 Indoor Sports Facilities £0 £28,616 £28,616 £0
S106 Open Spaces £158,004 £0 £0 £0
S106 Play Equipment Hatfield Town Council £0 £7,172 £0 £7,172
S106 Play Facilities Hatfield Town Council £0 £12,762 £6,020 £6,742
S106 Waste and Recycling £0 £8,189 £2,154 £6,035

TOTALS £158,004 £82,645 £54,790 £27,855

Hatfield North Potential Collected Spent Available
S106 Community Art £0 £10,000 £10,000 £0
S106 Community Facilities £0 £177,490 £0 £177,490
S106 Open Spaces £0 £15,622 £11,622 £4,000
S106 Outdoor Sports Facililties £0 £73,268 £73,268 £0
S106 Play Area Hatfield Town Council £0 £68,994 £0 £68,994
S106 Waste and Recycling £0 £17,316 £17,316 £0

TOTALS £0 £362,690 £112,206 £250,484

Page 75



Appendix 1

Hatfield South Potential Collected Spent Available
S106 Play Equipment Hatfield Town Council £0 £16,149 £16,149 £0
S106 Waste and Recycling £0 £1,493 £792 £701
S106 Bus Shelter relocation & imprv. of fpth £0 £1,042 £0 £1,042

TOTALS £0 £18,684 £16,941 £1,743

Hatfield Villages Potential Collected Spent Available
S106 Business £0 £20,000 £17,436 £2,565
S106 Community Facilities £0 £329,647 £259,993 £69,654
S106 Leisure £18,788 £0 £0 £0
S106 Open Spaces £0 £79,042 £47,617 £31,425
S106 Parking £80,000 £25,169 £25,169 £0
S106 Waste and Recycling £12,096 £4,600 £4,600 £0

TOTALS £110,884 £458,458 £354,814 £103,644

Hatfield West Potential Collected Spent Available
S106 Allotments £0 £490 £490 £0
S106 Green Space £898 £1,125 £0 £1,125
S106 Play Equipment Hatfield Town Council £0 £79,262 £4,000 £75,262
S106 Play Facilities Hatfield Town Council £2,355 £2,951 £0 £2,952
S106 Waste and Recycling £0 £4,961 £3,430 £1,532

TOTALS £3,253 £88,789 £7,920 £80,870

Hollybush Potential Collected Spent Available
S106 Open Spaces £0 £209,139 £193,802 £15,337
S106 Waste & Recycling £0 £1,350 £1,350 £0

TOTALS £0 £210,489 £195,152 £15,337

Howlands Potential Collected Spent Available
S106 Green Space £0 £1,432 £0 £1,432
S106 Open Spaces £0 £15,000 £0 £15,000
S106 Play Area WHBC £0 £15,000 £0 £15,000
S106 Waste and Recycling £0 £842 £842 £0

TOTALS £0 £32,274 £842 £31,432

Page 76



Appendix 1

Northaw & Cuffley Potential Collected Spent Available
S106 Green Space £0 £2,926 £2,926 £0
S106 Open Spaces £1,262 £0 £0 £0
S106 Play Equipment Parish Council £3,320 £7,675 £0 £7,675
S106 Waste & Recycling £1,400 £0 £0 £0

TOTALS £5,982 £10,601 £2,926 £7,675

Panshanger Potential Collected Spent Available
S106 Green Space £2,834 £0 £0 £0
S106 Outdoor Sports Facilities £0 £409,036 £285,000 £124,036
S106 Play Facilities WHBC £7,434 £0 £0 £0
S106 Trees £0 £3,100 £3,100 £0
S106 Waste & Recycling £1,575 £0 £0 £0

TOTALS £11,843 £412,136 £288,100 £124,036

Peartree Potential Collected Spent Available
S106 Allotments £11,000 £0 £0 £0
S106 Green Space £32,694 £4,626 £0 £0
S106 Healthcare £140,000 £0 £0 £0
S106 General Medical Services £412,100 £0 £0 £0
S106 Indoor Sports Facilities £75,000 £6,000 £0 £6,000
S106 Outdoor Sports Facilities £205,000 £6,000 £6,000 £0
S106 Open Spaces £5,528 £0 £0 £0
S106 Parking £35,000 £0 £0 £0
S106 Play Area WHBC £0 £4,200 £4,200 £0
S106 Play Facilities WHBC £14,449 £12,133 £12,133 £0
S106 Rights of Way WHBC £150,000 £0 £0 £0
S106 Waste and Recycling £83,028 £9,211 £4,429 £4,782

TOTALS £1,152,799 £42,170 £26,762 £10,782

Sherrards Potential Collected Spent Available
£0 £0 £0 £0

Page 77



Appendix 1

Welham Green Potential Collected Spent Available
S106 Outdoor Sports Facilities £0 £1,400,000 £44,042 £1,355,958
S106 Parking £0 £482,294 £482,294 £0

TOTALS £0 £1,882,294 £526,336 £1,355,958

Welham Green & Hatfield South Potential Collected Spent Available
S106 Play Facilities Hatfield Town Council £0 £6,458 £0 £6,458
S106 Waste and Recycling £0 £2,793 £2,793 £0

TOTALS £0 £9,251 £2,793 £6,458

Welwyn East Potential Collected Spent Available
£0 £0 £0 £0

Welwyn North Potential Collected Spent Available
£0 £0 £0 £0

Welwyn South Potential Collected Spent Available
£0 £0 £0 £0

Welwyn West Potential Collected Spent Available
S106 Allotments £0 £1,082 £1,082 £0
S106 Green Space £0 £6,625 £0 £6,625
S106 Parking Surveys & Mitigation £0 £50,000 £50,000 £0
S106 Play Equipment Parish Council £0 £13,690 £13,699 £0
S106 Play Facilities Parish Council £0 £3,688 £0 £3,688
S106 Waste and Recycling £1,880 £18,991 £14,594 £4,397

TOTALS £1,880 £94,076 £79,375 £14,710

GRAND TOTALS £1,447,645 £3,859,022 £1,783,229 £2,071,175

Source: Exacom Dashboard - S106 Financial Summary 20June2018

Page 78



Appendix 2

District District Ref Electoral
Division

Town Address Agreement
Date

Use Clause Refund Date RAG Remaining Approvals Possible Schemes

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

6/2016/0192/MAJ Hatfield Rural ED Brookmans Park Land accessed from 1 Green
Close

11/08/2016 Library Towards the improvement of the adult stock
area at Brookmans Park Library

None Green £1,805.62

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2008/1948/MA Hatfield Rural ED Brookmans Park Lower Woodside Farm Lower
Woodside Hill Road

07/01/2009 Library additional facilities serving the locality of the
Development

10 years of the
date of
notification of
completion of
the
Development

Green £1,900.00

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2011/2348/MA Hatfield Rural ED Cuffley 69 Station Road 02/02/2012 Library Towards the cost of providing additional and/or
improved library facilities serving the locality of
the Development

None Green £1,721.45

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2014/0243/MA Hatfield Rural ED Cuffley Turbocentre Car Sales, 80 Station
Road,

31/07/2014 Library facilities serving the locality of the Development None Green £3,715.20

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2014/0243/MA Hatfield Rural ED Cuffley Turbocentre Car Sales, 80 Station
Road,

31/07/2014 Primary facilities serving the locality of the Development None Green £23,500.80

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2014/0243/MA Hatfield Rural ED Cuffley Turbocentre Car Sales, 80 Station
Road,

31/07/2014 Youth facilities serving the locality of the Development None Green £374.40

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2011/2614/FP Hatfield North ED Hatfield 35 Lemsford Road 30/04/2012 Childcare To provide childcare facilities serving the
locality of the development

10 years of the
date of
notification of
completion

Green £558.31 £0.00 Approved
(18/03/2015)  New Classroom at
Birchwood Primary for The Birches,
Birchwood Nursery SCHEME DID NOT
PROCEED

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2011/2614/FP Hatfield North ED Hatfield 35 Lemsford Road 30/04/2012 Nursery Towards the cost of nursery facilities serving
the locality of the development

10 years of the
date of
notification of
completion

Green £1,375.54 £0.00 Approved
(18/03/2015)  New Classroom at
Birchwood Primary for The Birches,
Birchwood Nursery SCHEME DID NOT
PROCEED

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

6/2016/0345/MAJ Hatfield East ED Hatfield 41-43 Roe Green Lane 21/03/2017 Early Years Towards the expansion of Birchwood Nursery
School by up to 26 places

10 yrs from
receipt of the
notice of
Completion

Green £5,207.04

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2014/1052/MA Hatfield East ED Hatfield 45 Roe Green Lane 03/09/2014 Library facilities serving the locality of the Development None Green £1,288.77

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2014/1052/MA Hatfield East ED Hatfield 45 Roe Green Lane 03/09/2014 Primary facilities serving the locality of the Development None Green £5,453.63

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2014/1052/MA Hatfield East ED Hatfield 45 Roe Green Lane 03/09/2014 Youth facilities serving the locality of the Development None Green £58.97

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2013/1606/MA Hatfield South ED Hatfield City Church, The Wades 24/07/2014 Library facilities serving the locality of the Development None Green £1,841.58

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2013/1606/MA Hatfield South ED Hatfield City Church, The Wades 24/07/2014 Youth facilities serving the locality of the Development None Green £201.46

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

6/2016/1647/MA Hatfield East ED Hatfield Encore House 15/02/2017 Library Towards improvements of ICT provision at
Hatfield Library

None Green £3,160.13

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2011/1560/MA Hatfield North ED Hatfield Former Bill Salmon Centre, 88
Town Centre

20/12/2011 Childcare facilities serving the locality of the Development None Green £841.51 £0.00 Approved
(18/03/2015)  New Classroom at
Birchwood Primary for The Birches,
Birchwood Nursery SCHEME DID NOT
PROCEED

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2011/1560/MA Hatfield North ED Hatfield Former Bill Salmon Centre, 88
Town Centre

20/12/2011 Library facilities serving the locality of the Development None Green £2,114.47

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2011/1560/MA Hatfield North ED Hatfield Former Bill Salmon Centre, 88
Town Centre

20/12/2011 Nursery facilities serving the locality of the Development None Green £2,895.36 £0.00 Approved
(18/03/2015)  New Classroom at
Birchwood Primary for The Birches,
Birchwood Nursery SCHEME DID NOT
PROCEED

Expansion of De Havilland Primary
£2895.36   Sam Young

P
age 79



Appendix 2

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2009/891/MA Hatfield North ED Hatfield Former Hatfield Aerodrome 07/06/2010 Childcare towards the cost of childcare facilities None Green £3,092.00 £0.00 Approved
(18/03/2015)  New Classroom at
Birchwood Primary for The Birches,
Birchwood Nursery SCHEME DID NOT
PROCEED

Expansion of De Havilland Primary
£3092.00   Sam Young

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2009/891/MA Hatfield North ED Hatfield Former Hatfield Aerodrome 07/06/2010 Library towards the cost of library facilities None Green £4,564.00

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2009/891/MA Hatfield North ED Hatfield Former Hatfield Aerodrome 07/06/2010 Secondary towards the cost of secondary facilities None Green £0.00 £48499.00 Approved
(06/02/2018)  Stanborough expansion

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2003/1137/FP Hatfield North ED Hatfield Hatfield Aerodrome 13/04/2005 Library To meet the cost of providing library facilities,
buildings, books, equipment, other community
information materials or equipment within the
District Council’s and/or St Albans
administrative areas

15 years after
completion of
the Frontier
Development

Green £1,205.67 £9035.89 Approved
(31/03/2007)  Refurb of Hatfield Library

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/1064/99/OP Hatfield North ED Hatfield Hatfield Aerodrome, Comet Way 29/12/2000 Library Contributes to community facilities in the
locality

15 years after
completion of
the
Development

Green £8,808.27 £104886.19 Approved
(31/03/2007)  Hatfield Library refurb

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/1064/99/OP Hatfield North ED Hatfield Hatfield Aerodrome, Comet Way 29/12/2000 Secondary cost of providing improvements alterations
additional replacement and/or enhanced school
buildings classrooms and/or facilities and/or
equipment at any secondary schools within the
District Council's or St Albans City and District
Council's administrative

15 years after
completion of
the
Development

Green £0.00 £3089198.22 Approved
(13/06/2017)  Expansion of Onslow St
Audrey's School (Secondary)

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2010/0136/MA Hatfield North ED Hatfield Hatfield Town Centre (East)
Queensway

05/04/2012 Childcare facilities serving the locality of the development 10th ann of
notification of
completion of
the
development

Green £241.03 £0.00 Approved
(18/03/2015)  New Classroom at
Birchwood Primary for The Birches,
Birchwood Nursery SCHEME DID NOT
PROCEED

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2010/0136/MA Hatfield North ED Hatfield Hatfield Town Centre (East)
Queensway

05/04/2012 Nursery facilities serving the locality of the development 10th ann of
notification of
completion of
the
development

Green £44.57 £0.00 Approved
(18/03/2015)  New Classroom at
Birchwood Primary for The Birches,
Birchwood Nursery SCHEME DID NOT
PROCEED

£780.00 Approved
(20/09/2013)  Hatfield Community Free
School PEP2 Primary Expansion

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2013/2231/MA Hatfield Rural ED Hatfield Land at 1-12 Green Close 25/06/2014 Library additional facilities serving the locality of the
Development

28/05/2025 Green £2,300.69

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2013/2231/MA Hatfield Rural ED Hatfield Land at 1-12 Green Close 25/06/2014 Secondary facilities serving the locality of the Development 28/05/2025 Green £59,208.69

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2013/2231/MA Hatfield Rural ED Hatfield Land at 1-12 Green Close 25/06/2014 Youth facilities serving the locality of the Development 28/05/2025 Green £1,054.29

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2005/0432/FP Hatfield East ED Hatfield Land at Dunhams Courtyard, Park
Street

05/06/2007 Childcare additional facilities serving the locality of the
development

10th
anniversary of
notification of
completion of
the
development

Green £1,159.65 £0.00 Approved
(18/03/2015)  New Classroom at
Birchwood Primary for The Birches,
Birchwood Nursery SCHEME DID NOT
PROCEED

£1795.86 Approved
(24/09/2012)  Squirrels day nursery at
Hatfield community free school

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2005/0432/FP Hatfield East ED Hatfield Land at Dunhams Courtyard, Park
Street

05/06/2007 Library additional facilities serving the locality of the
development

10th
anniversary of
notification of
completion of
the
development

Green £2,947.36

P
age 80



Appendix 2

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2005/0432/FP Hatfield East ED Hatfield Land at Dunhams Courtyard, Park
Street

05/06/2007 Secondary additional facilities serving the locality of the
development

10th
anniversary of
notification of
completion of
the
development

Green £0.00 £25949.84 Approved
(06/02/2018)  Stanborough expansion

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2005/0432/FP Hatfield East ED Hatfield Land at Dunhams Courtyard, Park
Street

05/06/2007 Youth additional facilities serving the locality of the
development

10th
anniversary of
notification of
completion of
the
development

Green £2,955.51 Improvement and extension of facilities at
Breaks Manor
£2955.51   peter hosier

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/1999/0971/FP Hatfield North ED Hatfield Land at former Smurfit Factory
Site, Brayfields

13/02/2001 Secondary cost of providing improvements alterations
additional replacement and/or enhanced school
buildings classrooms and/or facilities and/or
equipment at any secondary schools within the
District Council's or St Albans City and District
Council's administrative

15 years after
completion of
the
Development

Green £0.00 £277627.78 Approved
(13/06/2017)  Expansion of Onslow St
Audrey's School (Secondary)

£1713213.09 Approved
(06/02/2018)  Stanborough expansion

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2007/925/MA Hatfield South ED Hatfield Land at Hazel Grove Primary
School, Hazel Grove

30/01/2009 Library additional facilities serving the locality of the
Development

5th
anniversary of
being notified
of completion
of the
Development

Green £6,732.00

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2007/925/MA Hatfield South ED Hatfield Land at Hazel Grove Primary
School, Hazel Grove

30/01/2009 Youth additional facilities serving the locality of the
Development

5th
anniversary of
being notified
of completion
of the
Development

Green £4,305.00 Improvement and extension of facilities at
Breaks Manor
£4305.00   peter hosier

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2011/1994/MA Hatfield East ED Hatfield Land at Salisbury Square 30/01/2013 Childcare facilities serving the locality of the Development 15/01/2023 Amber £0.00 £954.00 Approved
(18/03/2015)  New Classroom at
Birchwood Primary for The Birches,
Birchwood Nursery SCHEME DID NOT
PROCEED

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2011/1994/MA Hatfield East ED Hatfield Land at Salisbury Square 30/01/2013 Library facilities serving the locality of the Development 15/01/2023 Amber £2,085.00

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2014/2179/MA Hatfield South ED Hatfield Land to Rear of 44-52 Garden
Avenue

06/03/2015 Library facilities serving the locality of the Development 19/09/2026 Green £1,767.29

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2014/2179/MA Hatfield South ED Hatfield Land to Rear of 44-52 Garden
Avenue

06/03/2015 Primary facilities serving the locality of the Development 19/09/2026 Green £20,314.11

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2014/2179/MA Hatfield South ED Hatfield Land to Rear of 44-52 Garden
Avenue

06/03/2015 Secondary facilities serving the locality of the Development 19/09/2026 Green £0.00 £4583.76 Approved
(06/02/2018)  Chancellors expansion

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2014/2179/MA Hatfield South ED Hatfield Land to Rear of 44-52 Garden
Avenue

06/03/2015 Youth facilities serving the locality of the Development 19/09/2026 Green £111.98

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2010/0111/OP Hatfield East ED Hatfield Mount Pleasant Depot, Mount
Pleasant Lane

25/02/2011 Childcare Towards the costs of providing
facilities/services serving the locality of the
Development

None Green £13,620.51 £0.00 Approved
(18/03/2015)  New Classroom at
Birchwood Primary for The Birches,
Birchwood Nursery - SCHEME DID NOT
PROCEED

Expansion of De Havilland Primary
£13620.51   Sam Young

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2010/0111/OP Hatfield East ED Hatfield Mount Pleasant Depot, Mount
Pleasant Lane

25/02/2011 Library Towards the costs of providing
facilities/services serving the locality of the
Development

None Green £19,869.05

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2010/0111/OP Hatfield East ED Hatfield Mount Pleasant Depot, Mount
Pleasant Lane

25/02/2011 Nursery Towards the costs of providing
facilities/services serving the locality of the
Development

None Green £35,119.99 £0.00 Approved
(18/03/2015)  New Classroom at
Birchwood Primary for The Birches,
Birchwood Nursery SCHEME DID NOT
PROCEED

Expansion of De Havilland Primary
£35119.99   Sam Young

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2010/0111/OP Hatfield East ED Hatfield Mount Pleasant Depot, Mount
Pleasant Lane

25/02/2011 Primary Towards the costs of providing
facilities/services serving the locality of the
Development

None Green £0.00 £242481.29 Approved
(13/02/2015)  Oak View Primary

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2010/0111/OP Hatfield East ED Hatfield Mount Pleasant Depot, Mount
Pleasant Lane

25/02/2011 Youth Towards the costs of providing
facilities/services serving the locality of the
Development

None Green £4,771.17

P
age 81



Appendix 2

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2010/0811/MA Hatfield East ED Hatfield Old Police Station and Council
Offices

16/08/2010 Childcare To provide facilities serving the locality of the
Second Development

01/12/2020 Red £2,028.00 £0.00 Approved
(18/03/2015)  New Classroom at
Birchwood Primary for The Birches,
Birchwood Nursery SCHEME DID NOT
PROCEED

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2010/0811/MA Hatfield East ED Hatfield Old Police Station and Council
Offices

16/08/2010 Library To provide facilities serving the locality of the
Second Development

01/12/2020 Red £2,842.00

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2012/2004/MA Hatfield East ED Hatfield The Cat and Fiddle, 199 St Albans
Road West

06/03/2013 Childcare To provide childcare facilities serving the
locality of the development

None Green £1,108.46 £0.00 Approved
(18/03/2015)  New Classroom at
Birchwood Primary for The Birches,
Birchwood Nursery SCHEME DID NOT
PROCEED

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2012/2004/MA Hatfield East ED Hatfield The Cat and Fiddle, 199 St Albans
Road West

06/03/2013 Library Towards the cost of additional library facilities
serving the locality of the development

None Green £1,008.07

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2012/2004/MA Hatfield East ED Hatfield The Cat and Fiddle, 199 St Albans
Road West

06/03/2013 Nursery Towards the cost of nursery education facilities
serving the locality of the development

None Green £3,240.67 £0.00 Approved
(18/03/2015)  New Classroom at
Birchwood Primary for The Birches,
Birchwood Nursery SCHEME DID NOT
PROCEED

Expansion of De Havilland Primary
£3240.67   Sam Young

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2008/2052/OP Hatfield East ED Hatfield Three Valleys Water, Bishops Rise 23/01/2009 Childcare facilities/services serving the locality of the
Development

10 years of the
date of
notification of
completion of
the
Development

Green £10,538.00 £0.00 Approved
(18/03/2015)  New Classroom at
Birchwood Primary for The Birches,
Birchwood Nursery SCHEME DID NOT
PROCEED

Expansion of De Havilland Primary
£10538.00   Sam Young

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2008/2052/OP Hatfield East ED Hatfield Three Valleys Water, Bishops Rise 23/01/2009 Library facilities/services serving the locality of the
Development

10 years of the
date of
notification of
completion of
the
Development

Green £15,812.00

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2008/2052/OP Hatfield East ED Hatfield Three Valleys Water, Bishops Rise 23/01/2009 Youth facilities/services serving the locality of the
Development

10 years of the
date of
notification of
completion of
the
Development

Green £3,513.00 Improvement and extension of facilities at
Breaks Manor
£3513.00   peter hosier

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

S6/2008/654/MA Hatfield Rural ED Potters Bar Claregate Great North Road 27/06/2008 Library To provide facilities serving the locality of the
development

None Green £3,906.00

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2012/0406/FP Welwyn ED Welwyn 18 Great North Road 24/12/2012 Secondary Education facilities serving the locality of the
development

25/07/2023 Green £13,638.09

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2013/0821/MA Welwyn ED Welwyn Former Clock Hotel, Church Street 28/10/2013 Library Facilities serving the locality of the
Development

27/11/2024 Green £6,500.57

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2013/0821/MA Welwyn ED Welwyn Former Clock Hotel, Church Street 28/10/2013 Secondary Facilities serving the locality of the
Development

27/11/2024 Green £20,930.29

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2009/1765/MA Welwyn ED Welwyn Former Ford Garage, Bypass
Road

17/11/2009 Childcare Additional facilities/services serving the locality
of the development

10th
anniversary of
the completion
of the
development

Green £1,000.00

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2009/1765/MA Welwyn ED Welwyn Former Ford Garage, Bypass
Road

17/11/2009 Youth Additional facilities/services serving the locality
of the development

10th
anniversary of
the completion
of the
development

Green £1,000.00

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2009/1506/MA Welwyn ED Welwyn Land adj 55 Mardley Hill 04/12/2009 Childcare Facilities serving the locality of the
Development

None Green £1,818.64

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2009/1506/MA Welwyn ED Welwyn Land adj 55 Mardley Hill 04/12/2009 Library Additional facilities serving the locality of the
Development

None Green £2,518.27

P
age 82



Appendix 2

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

6/2017/0547/FULL Welwyn ED Welwyn Land Adjacent to 82 Great North
Road

06/10/2017 Library to support the development of IT on the first
floor of Welwyn Garden City Library, to
incorporate tables with power enabling
customers to plug in their mobile devices

None Green £1,643.83

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2012/1778/OP Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe 20/12/2012 Childcare facilities serving the locality of the
Development.  Phase 1 & 2

30/06/2024 Green £11,709.10

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2012/1778/OP Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe 20/12/2012 Childcare facilities serving the locality of the
Development. Phase 4

30/09/2025 Green £20,713.90

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2012/1778/OP Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe 20/12/2012 Library facilities serving the locality of the
Development. Phase 1 & 2

30/06/2024 Green £14,786.90

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2012/1778/OP Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe 20/12/2012 Library facilities serving the locality of the
Development. Phase 4

30/09/2025 Green £28,058.99

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2012/1778/OP Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe 20/12/2012 Nursery facilities serving the locality of the
Development. Phase 1 & 2

30/06/2024 Green £29,508.74

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2012/1778/OP Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe 20/12/2012 Nursery facilities serving the locality of the
Development. Phase 4

30/09/2025 Green £50,782.11

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2012/1778/OP Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe 20/12/2012 Primary facilities serving the locality of the
Development. Phase 1 & 2

30/06/2024 Green £218,912.56

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2012/1778/OP Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe 20/12/2012 Primary facilities serving the locality of the
Development. Phase 4

30/09/2025 Green £375,818.02

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2012/1778/OP Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe 20/12/2012 Secondary facilities serving the locality of the
Development. Phase 1 & 2

30/06/2024 Green £198,795.70

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2012/1778/OP Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe 20/12/2012 Secondary facilities serving the locality of the
Development. Phase 4

30/09/2025 Green £416,072.96

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2012/1778/OP Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe 20/12/2012 Youth facilities serving the locality of the
Development. Phase 1 & 2

30/06/2024 Green £3,773.32

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2012/1778/OP Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe 20/12/2012 Youth facilities serving the locality of the
Development. Phase 4

30/09/2025 Green £8,013.26

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2015/1079/MA Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City 118 Homestead Lane 28/10/2015 Library facilities serving the locality of the Development None Green £2,023.00

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2015/1079/MA Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City 118 Homestead Lane 28/10/2015 Nursery facilities serving the locality of the Development None Green £3,519.00

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2014/0918/MA Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City 82 Bridge Road East, 25/09/2014 Childcare facilities serving the locality of the Development None Green £3,173.09 towards provision at the reprovided Peartree
school
£3173.09   Nicola Judd

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2014/0918/MA Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City 82 Bridge Road East, 25/09/2014 Library facilities serving the locality of the Development None Green £4,954.99

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2014/0918/MA Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City 82 Bridge Road East, 25/09/2014 Primary facilities serving the locality of the Development None Green £55,089.10 Permanent expansion of Holwell PEP4
£55089.10   Sam Young

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2014/0918/MA Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City 82 Bridge Road East, 25/09/2014 Secondary facilities serving the locality of the Development None Green £53,656.53

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2014/0918/MA Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City 82 Bridge Road East, 25/09/2014 Youth facilities serving the locality of the Development None Green £1,084.47

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2005/1460IFP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City Attimore Hall and Attimore Barns,
The Ridgeway

20/11/2006 Youth Towards the costs of providing additional youth
facilities serving the locality of the Development

10th
anniversary of
notification of
the first
occupation of
the last
dwelling unit

Green £5,797.29

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2009/2259/MA Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City Former Chieftain PH Cole Green
Lane

18/01/2010 Library Towards facilities serving the locality of the
Development

14/06/2020 Red £2,376.00

P
age 83



Appendix 2

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2011/1177/FP Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City Former Parkway School 18/08/2011 Childcare To provide childcare facilities serving the
locality of the Development

None Green £887.89 £500.00 Approved
(29/04/2014)  Equipment for Tree Tops
at Ludwick Nursery School

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2011/1177/FP Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City Former Parkway School 18/08/2011 Library Towards the cost of additional library facilities
serving the locality of the Development

None Green £351.31 £1640.00 Approved
(25/11/2017)  Public Area Upgrades at
Welwyn Garden City Library

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2011/1177/FP Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City Former Parkway School 18/08/2011 Secondary Towards the cost of secondary educational
facilities serving the locality of the Development

None Green £25,756.34

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2010/1776/MA Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City FORMER ROCHE BUILDINGS 09/03/2011 Library Towards the provision of facilities ordinarily
used by residents of the Development

None Green £26,274.00

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2010/1776/MA Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City FORMER ROCHE BUILDINGS 09/03/2011 Secondary Towards the provision of facilities ordinarily
used by residents of the Development

None Green £6,046.00

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2010/1776/MA Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City FORMER ROCHE BUILDINGS 09/03/2011 Youth Towards the provision of facilities ordinarily
used by residents of the Development

None Green £3,889.00

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2014/2462/MA Haldens ED Welwyn Garden City Land at Bericot Way 02/03/2015 Library facilities and/or services serving the locality of
the Development

None Green £7,161.00

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2004/1334/FP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City Land at the Ridgeway and off
Black Fan Rd

20/09/2005 Library Providing additional library facilities for the
locality of the development

10th
anniversary of
being notified
of completion
of the
development

Green £24,555.05

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2004/1334/FP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City Land at the Ridgeway and off
Black Fan Rd

20/09/2005 Youth Providing additional youth and childcare
facilities for the locality of the development

10th
anniversary of
being notified
of completion
of the
development

Green £27,959.95

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2011/0218/MA Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City Land to rear of 217-243 Knella
Road

16/08/2011 Library Towards the cost of additional Libraries
facilities serving the locality of the Development

None Green £2,528.00

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2005/1248/FP Haldens ED Welwyn Garden City Moors Walk Neighbourhood
Centre

06/11/2006 Library Towards the costs of providing additional
library facilities serving the locality of the
Development

10th
anniversary of
notification of
first
occupation of
the last unit

Green £5,100.00

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2005/1248/FP Haldens ED Welwyn Garden City Moors Walk Neighbourhood
Centre

06/11/2006 Youth Towards the costs of providing additional youth
facilities serving the locality of the Development

10th
anniversary of
notification of
the first
occupation of
the last unit

Green £5,175.13

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2010/2456/MA Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City Police Station 08/07/2011 Library Towards the cost of additional library facilities
serving the locality of the Development

None Green £5,774.42

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2011/0359/OP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City QE II Hospital 03/06/2013 Childcare 1st 50% towards facilities serving the locality of
the Development

08/11/2026 Green £5,298.27 £7000.00 Approved
(04/09/2017)  Upgrade of The Commons
Pre-School

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2011/0359/OP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City QE II Hospital 03/06/2013 Childcare 2nd 50% towards facilities serving the locality
of the Development

20/09/2027 Green £12,352.69

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2011/0359/OP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City QE II Hospital 03/06/2013 Library 1st 50% towards facilities serving the locality of
the Development

08/11/2026 Green £17,496.92

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2011/0359/OP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City QE II Hospital 03/06/2013 Library 2nd 50% towards facilities serving the locality
of the Development

20/09/2027 Green £17,574.34

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2011/0359/OP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City QE II Hospital 03/06/2013 Nursery 1st 50% towards facilities serving the locality of
the Development

08/11/2026 Green £12,691.91 £18802.16 Approved
(04/09/2017)  Upgrade of The Commons
Pre-School

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2011/0359/OP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City QE II Hospital 03/06/2013 Nursery 2nd 50% towards facilities serving the locality
of the Development

20/09/2027 Green £31,633.42

P
age 84



Appendix 2

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2011/0359/OP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City QE II Hospital 03/06/2013 Primary 1st 50% towards facilities serving the locality of
the Development

08/11/2026 Green £220,599.25

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2011/0359/OP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City QE II Hospital 03/06/2013 Primary 2nd 50% towards facilities serving the locality
of the Development

20/09/2027 Green £221,575.35

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2011/0359/OP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City QE II Hospital 03/06/2013 Secondary 1st 50% towards facilities serving the locality of
the Development

08/11/2026 Green £216,275.54

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2011/0359/OP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City QE II Hospital 03/06/2013 Secondary 2nd 50% towards facilities serving the locality
of the Development

20/09/2027 Green £217,232.52

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2011/0359/OP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City QE II Hospital 03/06/2013 Youth 1st 50% towards facilities serving the locality of
the Development

08/11/2026 Green £4,204.25

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2011/0359/OP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City QE II Hospital 03/06/2013 Youth 2nd 50% towards facilities serving the locality
of the Development

20/09/2027 Green £4,222.85

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

6/2015/2213/MAJ Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City Rank Xerox Ltd 02/06/2016 Childcare towards Childcare services at the re-provided
Peartree Primary School for 3-5 year olds

17/08/2022 Amber £13,118.01

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2006/291/FP Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City Rosanne House 26/03/2007 Childcare To provide facilities serving the locality of the
Development

None Green £1,337.42

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2006/291/FP Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City Rosanne House 26/03/2007 Library For the improvement of library facilities in
Hertfordshire

None Green £3,226.70

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2006/291/FP Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City Rosanne House 26/03/2007 Nursery Towards the cost of facilities serving the
locality of the Development

None Green £4,487.31

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2006/0923/OP Haldens ED Welwyn Garden City Sir Frederic Osborn School 20/12/2011 Library Towards the provision of library facilities
serving the locality of the Development

10 years of the
date of receipt
of notice of
completion of
the
development

Green £12,903.35

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2006/0923/OP Haldens ED Welwyn Garden City Sir Frederic Osborn School 20/12/2011 Youth Towards the provision of youth facilities serving
the locality of the Development

10 years of the
date of receipt
of notice of
completion of
the
development

Green £12,938.98

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2013/0491/MA Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City The Hyde, Hollybush Lane 19/07/2013 Childcare additional facilities/services serving the locality
of the Development

None Green £1,642.11

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2013/0491/MA Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City The Hyde, Hollybush Lane 19/07/2013 Library additional facilities/services serving the locality
of the Development

None Green £1,948.22

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2013/0491/MA Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City The Hyde, Hollybush Lane 19/07/2013 Secondary additional facilities/services serving the locality
of the Development

None Green £11,298.17

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2013/0341/FP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City Welwyn Car Repairs Ltd 11/02/2014 Library facilities serving the locality of the Development 13/01/2026 Green £1,718.64

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2013/0341/FP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City Welwyn Car Repairs Ltd 11/02/2014 Primary facilities serving the locality of the Development 13/01/2026 Green £21,430.92

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2013/0341/FP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City Welwyn Car Repairs Ltd 11/02/2014 Secondary facilities serving the locality of the Development 13/01/2026 Green £22,229.48

Welwyn
Hatfield
Council

N6/2013/0341/FP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City Welwyn Car Repairs Ltd 11/02/2014 Youth facilities serving the locality of the Development 13/01/2026 Green £370.49

£3,087,222.19

P
age 85



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3

District District Ref Electoral
Division

Town Address Agreement
Date

Use Clause Refund Date RAG Remaining Approvals

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

6/2016/0192/MAJ Hatfield Rural ED Brookmans Park Land accessed from 1 Green
Close

11/08/2016 Sustainable
Transport

Towards the costs of improvements to bus
infrastructure within Station Road and
Bluebridge Road, Brookmans Park namely
enhancements to bus stops to an accessible
standard through provision of kassell kerbing
and/or the provision of real time passenger inf

None Green £11,948.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

S6/2011/2348/MA Hatfield Rural ED Cuffley 69 Station Road 02/02/2012 Sustainable
Transport

Towards the improvement of bus shelters
within the locality of the Development or such
other measures as the Director of Environment
in his absolute discretion determines will
encourage users
and occupiers of the Development to travel to
and from the Deve

None Green £9,048.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

S6/2014/0243/MA Hatfield Rural ED Cuffley Turbocentre Car Sales, 80 Station
Road,

31/07/2014 Sustainable
Transport

towards the design and construction of
highway improvement works traffic
management schemes traffic studies
improvements to public transport and/or
measures as will encourage users of the
Development to travel to and from the
Development by means of trans

None Green £23,314.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

6/2016/0345/MAJ Hatfield East ED Hatfield 41-43 Roe Green Lane 21/03/2017 Sustainable
Transport

Towards subway improvement works on routes
between application site and Hatfield Town
Centre

10 years
notice of
practical
completion of
the
development

Green £14,295.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

S6/2014/1052/MA Hatfield East ED Hatfield 45 Roe Green Lane 03/09/2014 Sustainable
Transport

Towards the design and construction of
highway improvement works traffic
management schemes traffic studies
improvements to public transport and/or such
measures as will encourage users of the
Development to travel to and from the
Development by means of

None Green £9,970.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

S6/2010/3088/OP Hatfield North ED Hatfield 46 The Common 11/05/2011 Sustainable
Transport

Towards the costs of design construction and
implementation of sustainable transport
measures which measures shall include (but
not limited to) highway improvement works
traffic management schemes traffic studies
improvements to public transport and/or su

None Green £20,808.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

S6/2013/1606/MA Hatfield South ED Hatfield City Church, The Wades 24/07/2014 Sustainable
Transport

Towards the design and construction of
highway improvements, traffic management
schemes, traffic studies, improvements to
public transport and/or measure which will
encourage user of the Development to use
means of transport other than private cars and
co

None Green £12,814.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

6/2016/1739/MAJ Hatfield South ED Hatfield Comet Hotel 17/01/2017 Sustainable
Transport

Toward improvements to pedestrian way
finding in the locality of the development

16/10/2027 Green £37,437.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

S6/1999/1115/OP &
S6/2003/656/FP

Hatfield North ED Hatfield Former Sports Ground to Smurfit
Factory

30/04/2002 Highway
Works

All or any of the off site works as described in
the Hatfield Aerodrome SPG and
improvements as required by the Highway
Authority and improvements or extensions to
the footpath and cycleway networks and
linkages as described in the Hatfield
Aerodrome SPG

14/02/2028 Green £27,632.83 £12135.00 Approved
(13/02/2018) 1718/WH/37 Improvements
to footway facilities between Astwick
Manor and Hatfield Avenue - ITP16028

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

S6/1064/99/OP Hatfield North ED Hatfield Hatfield Aerodrome, Comet Way 29/12/2000 Other TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT CONTRIBUTION:
Design and implementation of traffic calming
schemes including public consultation and
publication of TROs in the Birchwood
Residential Estate, Woods Avenue, Travellers
Lane and Bishops Rise within the context of
the Hatfi

12/09/2027 Green £151,384.01

P
age 87



Appendix 3

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

S6/1064/99/OP Hatfield North ED Hatfield Hatfield Aerodrome, Comet Way 29/12/2000 Other SPINE ROAD MAINTENANCE: Towards future
maintenance

None Green £256,728.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

S6/1064/99/OP Hatfield North ED Hatfield Hatfield Aerodrome, Comet Way 29/12/2000 Sustainable
Transport

TRANSPORT SUBSIDY:
The provision of subsidies to bus operator
companies to provide free or discounted fares
for residents, occupiers and employees of the
development and/or provide residents and
employees and/or their staff with
vouchers/season tickets/lo

05/01/2020 Red £5,766.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

S6/2013/2231/MA Hatfield Rural ED Hatfield Land at 1-12 Green Close 25/06/2014 Sustainable
Transport

Towards the design and construction of
highway improvements, traffic management
schemes, traffic studies, improvements to
public transport and/or measure which will
encourage user of the Development to use
means of transport other than private cars and
co

19/05/2025 Green £15,896.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

S6/2012/1928/PP Hatfield South ED Hatfield Land at Bishops Rise, University
of Hertfordshire

03/01/2013 Sustainable
Transport

as a contribution to be applied by the County
Council at its sole discretion towards the costs
of the design construction and implementation
of sustainable transport measures and in
respect of a cycle link along Woods Avenue
between Bishops Rise and Trave

None Green £0.00 £200000.00 Approved
(09/02/2017) 1617/WH/71 Design and
delivery of cycle scheme at Bishops
Rise/Woods Avenue roundabout &
Woods Avenue - ITP16025

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

S6/1999/0971/FP Hatfield North ED Hatfield Land at former Smurfit Factory
Site, Brayfields

13/02/2001 Highway
Works

(1) Any off site highway works as described in
the Hatfield Aerodrome SPG and/or traffic
calming and sustainable traffic within a radius
of 10km of the application site.
(2) Traffic management measures at Green
Lanes and Birchwood Estate.

14/10/2026 Green £55,447.95

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

S6/2014/2179/MA Hatfield South ED Hatfield Land to Rear of 44-52 Garden
Avenue

06/03/2015 Sustainable
Transport

Towards the design and construction of
highway improvement works traffic
management schemes traffic studies
improvements to public transport and/or
measures as will encourage users of the-
Development to travel to and from the
Development by means of tran

19/09/2026 Green £20,628.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

S6/2010/0111/OP Hatfield East ED Hatfield Mount Pleasant Depot, Mount
Pleasant Lane

25/02/2011 Sustainable
Transport

Towards the costs of the design construction
and implementation of sustainable transport
measures which measures may include (but
not limited to) upgrading of bus stops in Great
North Road footway improvements along The
Dell other highway improvement work

None Green £115,985.00 £20859.00 Approved
(29/11/2017) 1718/WH/31 Investigate
pedestrian and cycling accessibility
features along Mount Pleasant Lane -
ITP18004

£30000.00 Approved
(13/09/2017) 1718/WH/15 Upgrade 2
existing bus stops on Great North Road,
Hatfield - ITP17027

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

S6/2010/0111/OP Hatfield East ED Hatfield Mount Pleasant Depot, Mount
Pleasant Lane

25/02/2011 Traffic Calming Towards the design construction and
implementation of traffic calming measures in
Mount Pleasant Lane Hatfield Hertfordshire

None Green £55,789.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

S6/2012/2004/MA Hatfield East ED Hatfield The Cat and Fiddle, 199 St Albans
Road West

06/03/2013 Sustainable
Transport

as a contribution towards the design and
construction of highway improvement works
traffic management schemes traffic studies
improvements to public transport or such other
measures as will encourage users of the
Development to travel to and from the Deve

none Green £8,369.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

S6/2008/2052/OP Hatfield East ED Hatfield Three Valleys Water, Bishops
Rise

23/01/2009 Sustainable
Transport

Towards design construction and
implementation of sustainable transport
measures which measures shall include (but
not limited to) highway improvement works
traffic management schemes traffic studies
improvements to public transport or such other
measures

10 years of
notification of
completion of
development

Green £30,157.00 £30000.00 Approved
(09/02/2017) 1617/WH/71 Design and
delivery of cycle scheme at Bishops
Rise/Woods Avenue roundabout &
Woods Avenue - ITP16025

P
age 88



Appendix 3

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

S6/2001/66/FP Hatfield South ED Hatfield Travellers Lane, Welham Green 03/02/2006 Traffic
Regulation
Order

TRO Deposit - towards the costs to the County
Council of processing advertising and
implementing the TRO including the cost of
any works required to facilitate the TRO - to
impose stopping loading and waiting
restrictions on vehicles along Travellers Lane

None Green £0.00 £1712.40 Approved
(29/11/2017) 1718/WH/30 Parking
restrictions Travellers Lane

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

6/2015/2015/MAJ Hatfield North ED Hatfield Trident Place 16/08/2016 Sustainable
Transport

Towards the design and construction
inspection and supervision of either or both of
the following specific highway improvement
schemes: detailed feasibility studies and
delivery of subsequently implementation of
schemes delivering determined highway impro

05/09/2031 Green £148,500.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

6/2015/2015/MAJ Hatfield North ED Hatfield Trident Place 16/08/2016 Travel Plan
Monitoring

Towards the monitoring and support of the
performance of a travel plan for Ocado's staff
and visitors using the Parking Deck Site

None Green £6,000.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

Hatfield South ED Welham Green 148-150 Dixons Hill Road
(Charkham Mews)

30/08/2000 Sustainable
Transport

Sustainable transport measures in Welham
Green

None Green £5,638.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

S6/0873/98 Hatfield South ED Welham Green Tesco Distribution Centre 30/03/1999 Rights of Way
Improvements

Improvements to the existing rights of way
located near the western boundary of the
development site and running from Pooleys
Lane, Welham Green to Travellers Lane,
Hatfied.

None Green £6,228.80

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2013/0821/MA Welwyn ED Welwyn Former Clock Hotel, Church Street 28/10/2013 Sustainable
Transport

Towards the design and construction of
highway improvement works traffic
management schemes traffic studies
improvements to public transport and/or
measures as will encourage users of the
Development to travel to and from the
Development by means of trans

27/11/2024 Green £50,387.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2012/1778/OP Welwyn ED Welwyn The Frythe 20/12/2012 Passenger
Transport

Bus services into the site to serve the
development during the weekday peak periods
and on Saturdays

07/09/2025 Green £40,891.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2015/0034/MA Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City 43 Broadwater Road 19/11/2015 Sustainable
Transport

contribution towards the design and
construction of highway improvement works
such works to include improvements to bus
stop numbers 21600915 and 21600945 on
Broadwater Road including the provision of
shelters/real time passenger information and
other bus

None Green £29,034.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2014/0918/MA Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City 82 Bridge Road East, 25/09/2014 Sustainable
Transport

Towards the design and construction of
highway improvement works traffic
management schemes traffic studies
improvements to public transport and/or such
measures as will encourage users of the
Development to travel to and from the
Development by means of

None Green £30,808.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2015/1298/MA Welwyn ED Welwyn Garden City Former Argos Direct Distribution 06/08/2015 Sustainable
Transport

Towards the improvements of local facilities to
further promote accessibility to the Application
Site by public transport but more specifically, to
address infrastructure improvements to bus
stops north of the junction of A1000 with B195
(namely Bessemer

12/09/2027 Green £13,614.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

6/2015/1957/MAJ Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City Former Argos Direct Distribution
Depot

18/02/2016 Passenger
Transport

RTPI CONTRIBUTION:
Towards Real Time Passenger Information
Systems which shall, more particularly, be
utilised to upgrade stops servicing and in the
vicinity of the development

None Green £0.00 £41294.00 Approved
(21/09/2017) 1718/WH/12 Upgrade of
Welwyn Garden City bus station,
including a new shelter, more seating
and improving layout/capacity -
ITP16002

P
age 89



Appendix 3

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2014/2384/MA Welwyn ED Welwyn Garden City Former Argos Direct Distribution
Depot

10/04/2015 Sustainable
Transport

Towards the design and construction of
highway improvements, traffic management
schemes, traffic studies, improvements to
public transport and/or measure which will
encourage user of the Development to use
means of transport other than private cars and
co

12/09/2027 Green £5,446.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2009/2259/MA Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City Former Chieftain PH Cole Green
Lane

18/01/2010 Sustainable
Transport

towards sustainable transport measures
including passenger transport infrastructure
improvements design and construction of
highway improvement works traffic
management schemes traffic studies
improvements to public transport or such other
measures as wil

14/06/2020 Red £16,536.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2011/1177/FP Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City Former Parkway School 18/08/2011 Sustainable
Transport

Towards the design and construction of
highway improvement works traffic
management schemes traffic studies
improvements to public transport and/or
measures as will encourage users of the
Development to travel to and from the
Development by means of trans

None Green £15,254.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2010/1776/MA Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City FORMER ROCHE BUILDINGS 09/03/2011 Highway
Works

Towards improvement works at Broadwater
Road/Bridge Road signal junction

None Green £79,319.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2010/1776/MA Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City FORMER ROCHE BUILDINGS 09/03/2011 Sustainable
Transport

Towards funding two replacement bus shelters
and weekend and evening bus services or
such measures as will encourage users of the
Development to travel to and from the
Development by means of transport other than
the private car

None Green £74,375.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2010/1776/MA Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City FORMER ROCHE BUILDINGS 09/03/2011 Traffic
Regulation
Order

Towards the cost of a Traffic Regulation Order
to extend periods of restricted car parking on
Broadwater Road and the surrounding area

None Green £5,046.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

C6/0482/88/OP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City Holy Trinity School Site,
Chequersfield

24/09/2003 Passenger
Transport

Towards the costs of providing two new bus
stops and a new bus shelter and surfacing and
associated ancilliary works in Chequers

27/03/2017 £0.00 £2750.00 Approved
(21/12/2016) 1617/WH/65
Chequers/Howlands roundabout
improvements - ITP15034

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2007/556/MA Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City Hornbeams Centre, Ridgeway 10/12/2009 Sustainable
Transport

towards the design construction and
implementation of highway improvement works
traffic management schemes traffic studies
improvements to public transport or such other
measures as will encourage users of the
Development to travel to and from the Develop

10 years of the
date of receipt
of notice of
completion of
the
Development

Green £26,123.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2014/2743/FP Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City Indigo Court 19/08/2015 Travel Plan
Monitoring

Towards the costs of monitoring the Travel
Plan serving the locality of the Development

None Green £6,000.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2014/2462/MA Haldens ED Welwyn Garden City Land at Bericot Way 02/03/2015 Sustainable
Transport

Towards the costs of highway improvement
works traffic management schemes traffic
studies improvements to public transport or
measures as will encourage users of the
Development to travel to and from the
Development by means of transport other than
the pr

None Green £27,483.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2014/2462/MA Haldens ED Welwyn Garden City Land at Bericot Way 02/03/2015 Travel Plan
Monitoring

To be allocated to and spent by the local
highway authority for Hertfordshire towards the
costs of monitoring and administering any
travel plan requires pursuant to the Planning
Permission

None Green £6,090.87

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City Longcroft Lane 20/11/1995 Sustainable
Transport

Sustainable transport measures/improvements
in Welwyn Garden City

none Green £1,846.13

P
age 90



Appendix 3

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2011/0359/OP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City QE II Hospital 03/06/2013 Sustainable
Transport

towards the following:
(a) improvements to the adjoining bus shelters
of the Site to meet the Disability Discrimination
Act 1995 requirements;
(b) the placement of two outside departure
screens with AVL/Real Time information;
(c) a new ePIP (electronic pa

20/09/2027 Green £24,144.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2011/0358/OP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City QEII Hospital, Howlands 13/01/2012 Passenger
Transport

Towards:
(a) improvements to the adjoining bus shelters
of the site to meet the Disability Discrimation
Action 1995 requirements
(b) the placement of two outside departure
screens with AVL/Real Time Information
(c) a new ePIP (electronic passenger informa

None Green £35,524.14

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2008/2103/MA Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City Sainsbury's Supermarket 29/01/2010 Sustainable
Transport

Towards the design contruction and
implementation of sustainable transport
measures which measures shall include (but
not limited to) highway improvement works
traffic management schemes traffic studies
improvements to public transport or such other
measu

10 years of the
date the
County
Council is
notified of full
Occupation

Green £0.00 £395158.63 Approved
(21/09/2017) 1718/WH/12 Upgrade of
Welwyn Garden City bus station,
including a new shelter, more seating
and improving layout/capacity -
ITP16002

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2006/0923/OP Haldens ED Welwyn Garden City Sir Frederic Osborn School 20/12/2011 Other TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT CONTRIBUTION:
Towards traffic management measures

None - see
Sch 3

Green £9,866.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2006/0923/OP Haldens ED Welwyn Garden City Sir Frederic Osborn School 20/12/2011 Sustainable
Transport

HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE:
Towards the design and construction of
highway improvement works traffic studies
improvements to public transport or such other
measures as will encourage users of the
Development to travel to and from the
Development by means of t

10 years of the
date of receipt
of notice of
completion of
the
development

Green £60,812.13

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2013/1642/MA Haldens ED Welwyn Garden City Tesco, Shire Park 06/06/2014 Other SAFEGUARD SUM:
used to implement any remedial measures as
referred to in the Travel Plan to be carried out
on land that is public highway (or such other
measures agreed in consultation with the
Owner) required if the Annual Monitoring
Report indicates in

Final AMR
targets met
then refund
any unspent at
that date

Green £100,800.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2013/1642/MA Haldens ED Welwyn Garden City Tesco, Shire Park 06/06/2014 Travel Plan
Monitoring

Travel Plan Monitoring Fee for monitoring
compliance with this Agreement

None Green £0.00 £6000.00 Approved
(22/06/2016) 1617/WH/13 Evaluation
and support for Travel Plan
implementation and monitoring

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2013/0491/MA Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City The Hyde, Hollybush Lane 19/07/2013 Sustainable
Transport

Towards the design and construction of
highway improvement works traffic
management schemes traffic studies
improvements to public transport or such other
measures as will encourage users of the
Development to travel to and from the
Development by means o

None Green £21,381.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2007/256/FP Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City Waitrose Ltd, Bridge Road 03/10/2007 Sustainable
Transport

design, construction and implementation of
sustainable transport measures which shall
include but not limited to highway improvement
works, traffic management schemes, traffic
studies, improvements to public transport or
such other measures as will encour

none Green £3,340.34

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2013/1938/MA Handside &
Peartree ED

Welwyn Garden City Welwyn and Hatfield Borough
Council

04/12/2013 Sustainable
Transport

Towards the design and construction of
highway improvement works traffic
management schemes traffic studies
improvements to public transport or such other
measures that will promote accessibility by
sustainable means including bus cycling and
walking to m

None Green £5,921.00 £8000.00 Approved
(01/02/2018) 1718/WH/29 Provision of
electric charging points Bridge Road car
park

P
age 91



Appendix 3

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2013/0341/FP Welwyn Garden
City South ED

Welwyn Garden City Welwyn Car Repairs Ltd 11/02/2014 Sustainable
Transport

Towards the design and construction of
highway improvement works traffic
management schemes traffic studies
improvements to public transport or measures
as will encourage users of the Development to
travel to and from the Development by means
of transport

13/01/2026 Green £10,438.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2012/0425/MA Haldens ED Welwyn-Garden-
City

20 Black Fan Road 22/05/2012 Sustainable
Transport

Towards the costs of the design construction
and implementation of sustainable transport
measures which measures may include (but
not be limited to) measures identified in the
Welwyn Garden City Urban Transport Plan
highway improvement works traffic manag

None Green £29,929.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2014/2337/MA Welwyn ED Woolmer Green Knebworth Care Home 11/05/2015 Sustainable
Transport

towards the design and construction of
highway improvement works traffic
management schemes traffic studies
improvements to public transport or such other
measures as will encourage users of the
Development to travel to and from the
Development by means o

None Green £7,499.00

Welwyn Hatfield
Council

N6/2014/2337/MA Welwyn ED Woolmer Green Knebworth Care Home 11/05/2015 Travel Plan
Monitoring

Monitoring the Travel Plan None Green £6,000.00

£1,793,691.20

P
age 92


	Agenda
	6 20 UPLAND DRIVE, BROOKMANS PARK, HATFIELD, AL9 6PT - 6/2018/0655/FULL - ERECTION OF 2X5-BEDROOM DWELLINGS WITH PRIVATE REAR GARDENS AND FRONT DRIVEWAYS, FOLLOWING DEMOLITION OF EXISTING DWELLING
	7 11 ELM DRIVE, HATFIELD, AL10 8NR - 6/2018/1061/HOUSE - ERECTION OF FIRST FLOOR EXTENSION ABOVE EXISTING GROUND FLOOR EXTENSION
	8 MEADOW FARM, NORTHAW ROAD WEST, NORTHAW ROAD, POTTERS BAR, EN6 4QX - 6/2018/0679/VAR - VARIATION OF CONDITION 2 AND 3 ON PLANNING PERMISSION E6/1973/1887/, DATED 16/08/1973
	9 APPEAL DECISIONS
	10 PLANNING UPDATE - FUTURE PLANNING APPLICATIONS
	10 - Appendix 2 Future Applications Cttee Report No Call-In

	11 DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT - APRIL - JUNE 2018
	12 SECTION 106 PLANNING OBLIGATIONS REPORT
	12a- S106 Appendix 1 - Borough Council Funds by Ward as at 20 June 2018
	12b - S106 Appendix 2 - HCC TLR Property as at 28 Feb 2018
	12c- S106 Appendix 3 - HCC TLR  Highways as at 28 Feb 2018


